
6:00 P.M.

6:30 P.M

ROLL CALL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

COMMUNICATIONS

MOTIONS &
RESOLUTIONS

CITY OF LOCKPORT
COMMON COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA

REGULAR MEETING
July 26th,2023

6:30 P.M.

Committee of the Whole Meeting

Common Council Meeting

Beakman:
072623.1

XXXX:
072623.2

XXXX:
072623.3

Fogle:
072623.4

XXXX:
072623.5

XXXX:
072623.6

XXXX:
072623.7

XXXX:
072323.8

XXXX:
072623.9

XXXX:
072623.10

Approve Common Council minutes of
July 12,2023.

Water and Sewer System Infrastructure

Purple Heart Dedication Service on August 6th

Block Party - Saturday, August 12th -
Cottage Street, between Lagrange and High
Streetl2PM-9PM.

Grant permission to RFP for compost facility

Lockfest- Music and Arts - August 27th -
Lockport Main Street

Donations for family fun activity

Donations for park pavilion

Fundraiser at Short Street

13 W. Main electric box

Lockport Professional ParkXXXX:
072623.11

XXXX:
072623.12

Elected official's salary change



ADJOURNMENT Beakman:
072623.12

Adjourn meeting to August 91h,2023



Recess for public input.

072623.1

CITY OF LOCKPORT
CORPORATION PROCEEDINGS

Lockport Municipal Build ing

Regular Meeting
Official Record

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

July 261h,2023
6:30 P.M.

Mayor Michelle M. Roman called the meeting to order.

ROLL CALL

The following Common Council members answered the roll call:
Aldermen Beakman, Devine, Fogle, Swanson-Gellerson, Kantor, and Lupo.

INVOCATION

RECESS

On motion of Alderman Beakman, seconded by Alderman _, the
minutesoftheRegularMeetingofJuly12,2o23arehereb@theJournal
of Proceedings. Ayes Carried.

FROM THE MAYOR

Appointments:
711412023 Michael E. Tucker, 200 Park Ave., appointed to Water and Sewer Maintenance
Worker for the City of Lockport Water Distribution Department effective 7t21t2023. Satd
appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules
and Regulations.

711412023 Jeffrey Cuillo, 20 Windsor Street, appointed to Senior Water and Sewer
Maintenance worker for the City of Lockport Water Distribution Department effective
712112023. Said appointment is provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil
Services Rules and Regulations.

711912023 Jeremy M. Antonik, 310 Church Street, appointed to Fire Hydrant Maintenance
Worker for the Water Distribution Department effective7l2112023. Said appointment is
provisional and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules and Regulations



FROM THE CITY CLERK

The Clerk submitted payrolls, bills for services and expenses, and reported that the
Department Heads submitted reports of labor performed in their departments.
Reviewed by the Finance Committee.

Communications (which have been referred to the appropriate City officials)

712112023 Sarah K. Lanzo - notification that the bid proposals for the Lockport Raw Water
Pump Station Generator Purchase Specifications received on 712112023 are as follows:

Frey Electric Construction $188,000.00

712112023 Sarah K. Lanzo - notification that the bid proposals for the procurement of
Kenwood Nexedge Portable Radios and Accessories received on712112023 are as follows

FM Communications, lnc $41,514.41

Notice of Complaint:
711312023 John Public - Millar Place potholes and street sign replacement
711912023 Robert Carlin, 260 Niagara Street - tree

Referred to the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution.

Notice of Glaim:
711012023 Glenn Hillman - Moving truck was damaged by low hanging branch on city tree.

Referred to the Corporation Counsel

Notice of Petition: (for judgment pursuant to Article 78 of the New York State Civil Service
Laws and Rules)

611912023 - Tyler Methvin -vs- City of Lockport

MOTIONS & RESOLUTIONS

072623.2
By Alderman

Whereas the FY 2023 Capital Budget includes a proposed project for a water and
sewer master infrastructure plan to inventory the existing system and strategize a plan that
meets the needs of our community; and

Whereas the City published a request for proposalfor said project on May 30, 2023 and
received one completed bid by June 21,2023; and

Whereas the City has reviewed the submission and has recommended to pursue a
contract with Hunt EAS for a contract total of $165,000 and estimated $120,000 for testing and
data gathering for a grand project total of $285,000; and

Whereas the Water and Sewer Funds ended FY 2022 with a fund balance of $3 million
and $2 million respectively; and



Whereas said fund balances are in excess of the minimum requirement amount and
can be utilized for said capital project; now therefore be it

Resolved that the Mayor is authorized to enter into the contract with Hunt EAS
(contingent on corporation counsel approval) and that funding is to be allocated from the fund
balance of both funds (split evenly) less any upcoming funding availability.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.3 Purple Heart dedication -Being Prepared
By Alderman

072623.4
By Alderman Fogle

Resolved that pursuant to their request, permission is hereby granted to the residents
of Cottage Street, , to barricade said street from Legrange to High Street on July 22,2023 from
12 pm - 9 pm for a block party,

And be it further
Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution be and the same

is hereby authorized and directed to arrange for delivery of barricades, to the area prior to said
event.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.5
By Alderman

Whereas pursuant to Section 61 of the City of Lockport Charter the Common Council
has management and control of all real and personal property belonging to the City, and may
make such orders concerning same and leases thereof, not to exceed 99 years, as it may
deem best for the interest of the City, and

Whereas the Common Council and Mayor would like to inquire as to options regarding
the City's compost plant located at 611 W. Jackson St. as it relates to best use options of third
party and private companies for the purposes of composting and/or wastewater management,
and

Resolved that the Common Council hereby directs the City to publish a Request for
Proposal for best use of said land in its current state and be it that each proposal be accompanied
by a presentation made to the Common Council to discuss logistics and use of lands.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.7
By Alderman:

Resolved that pursuant to their request Lockport Main Street, (hereafter LMS) is hereby
granted permission to host Lockfest - Music and Arts for the Whole Family, in collaboration
with B & D Bagels on Sunday, August27,2023 from 12 pm - 7 pm at Lockview Plaza, said
event to include the following:



. Closure of Main Street to through traffic from Cottage Street to Pine Street for the
duration of the event

o Street barricades for closures delivered prior to the event
o LMS is granted access to electricity at the light posts along Main Street
r LMS is granted permission for vendors and restaurants to set up along and sevrve
o LMS is granted permission to place portable sanitation units on Main Street for this

event
r Garbage barrels delivered to the Main St. parking lot on Saturday for distribution

throughout event on Sunday

Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution is authorized and
directed to arrange for delivery of refuse containers and barricades to the area prior to the said
dates;

And be it further
Resolved that said permission is subject to LMS filing a certificate of insurance, covering

all of said events, with the City clerk, naming the City of Lockport as additional insured.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.7
By Alderman:

Whereas General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on them by
the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Sunrise Optimists for a donation of $G00 to be used for Family Fun Night on
August 11,2023;and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
A.8510.32705 Gifts and Donation $600

Expenditures
lncrease
4.8510.54515 Special Supplies $600

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.8
By Alderman

Whereas General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on them by
the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Rotary Club of Lockport for a donation of $32,913 to be used for a pavilion



to be used in the Lower Town Loop / Market Street Bathroom (under NASPO contract 1O7OO-
15856); and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
4.7110.32705

Expenditures
lncrease
4.7110.52025 Building and Grounds Equipment $32,913

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

072623.9 Fundraiser at Short Street- Being prepared

By Alderman:

072623.10
By Alderman

13 W Main St. electric box - Being prepared

072623.11
By Alderman

Whereas the owner(s) of the development commonly known as Lockport Professional
Park had challenged their property assessment against the City for successive years
beginning in 2015 through 2020; and

Whereas the City appeared and answered the suit and defended itself throughout
multiple court appearances; and

Whereas all parties reached a settlement in in 2020, which settlement became the
subject of additional motion practice in New York State Supreme Court that resulted in a court
order determining the precise amount of overpayments during the period of the lawsuits; now
be it

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund Budget is amended as follows:

Expenditures:

Gifts and Donation $32,913

Contingencies $103,297.60

Judgement and Claims 9103,297.60

and adopted. Ayes

Decrease
4.1900.54775

lncrease:
A.1900.54765

Seconded by Alderman

072623.12 Elected Official's Salary change - Being prepared



By Alderman

072623.13 ADJOURNMENT

At 

- 

P.M. Alderman Beakman moved the Common Council be adjourned until
6:30 P.M., Wednesday, August 9,2023.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes

SARAH K. LANZO
City Clerk



..ryi

I Office of the
N{ayor

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING
One Locks plaza

Lockport, New york 14094
Phone (716) 499-6665

Fax (716) 439.6668

Michelle M. Romon
TIAYOR

Iuly 14,2023

TO: Common Council

under and by viftue of the authority conferred.on me by the charter of the city of Lockport, NewYork' I, Michelte \l:ry, Mr*;;r"itcrrr, i;1Jr.ri appoinr Michaer E. rucker, 200 park
fi'::313-T,'ffi*U:;;n:*.Xf*ti.nY;#tceworkerrorthecitvorio,r.pon"

said appointment is subject to the city of Lockport Municipal civil Services Rules and Regulations
witness by hand and the Seal of the city of Lockport this r4rh day of Jury 2023.

M. Roman
Mayor

MMR/mat

cc: M. Tucker
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

Otrice <>f the One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094

Phone (716) 439.6665
Fax (716) 439-6668

Michelle M. Romon
tr'IAYOR

Mayor
JuLy 14,2023

TO: Common Council

Ynder,and by virtue- o]:the authority conferred on me by the Charter of the City of Lockport, New
York, I, Michelle M_. 

-R9man, 
Mayor of said City, do toeUy appoint Jeffrey A. Cuillo, 20 Windsor

Street, Lockport NY 14094 to Senior Water *d S.r., Maintenance Worker for the City of
Lockport water Distribution Department effective July 2i,2023.

Said-appointnent is Permanent and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rules
and Regulations.

witness by hand and the seal of the city of Lockport this l4tr,day of July 2023.

Roman
Mayor

MMR/mal

cc: J. Cuillo
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



ee

-EWa;raa

LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDINGo€ 6hte Lockpor,,ru;qn i13;:
Phone (716) 4A9-6665

Fox (71 6) 439-6668

fuIichelle M. Roman
TIAYOR

Iuly 19,2023

To Common Council:

Under and by virtue of the authority co$ege{.on me by the charter of the city of Lockport, NewYork, I, Michelle M. Roqg, Mayor of_said City; ddrrby appoint Jeremy M. Antonik,3l0church street' Lockport, NY 140-94 to Fire rryoraniluruint.nunce worker for the water DistributionDepartment effective July 21, 2023.

Said appointment is Permanent and subject to the City of Lockport Municipal Civil Services Rulesand Regulations.

witness my hand and the seal of the city of Lockport, New york this lgth day of July ,2023.
Sincerely,

Mayor

MMR/mal

Cc: J. Antonik
C. Dimmick
Civil Service



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
LOCKPORT MUNICIPAL BUILDING

ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY T4094

OFFICE OF CITY CLERK
Sarah K. Lanzo, City Clerk

Emily Stoddard Dep. City Clerk/Registrar of Vital Statistics

BID OPENING

€" 9r,o A/"rSl.**f Bid Opening:,int€.f

Time: 2-!vn

Office (716)439-6676
Fax (716)439-6702

Owner

Project:

a

\

rl55

;
t T

Contractor Name Phone Number Selvice(1) {a,o^.|
Biffirnount

Sotucc-

{rr" EIarIco (ondr.l*.' (wr. 7?ftc(- r?o u rc( , ood -oc) &**Ir
(



NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

CITY CLERKIS OFFICE
LOCKPORT, NEW YORK

Locknort Raw Water Pumn Station Generator Purc e Snecifications

Sealed proposals shall be received by the undersigned at Lockport Municipal Building, One Locks
Plaza, Lockport, New York, until 2:00 P.M. on Friday, July 21, 2023 atwhich time and place they
will be publicly opened and read for the Lockport Raw Water Pump Station Generator Purchase
Specifications in accordance with the Plans and Specifications obtainable as described below.

Effective Friday, June 23,2023, Bid Documents can be ordered through the following web site:
www.buffalocoplplanroom.com/jobs/public. If you do not have internet access or have questions on
ordering from the site, please contact The Copy Store at 716-847-6400. Bid Documents can be
picked up at The Copy Store at 49 Court Street, Buffalo, New York l4202,upon a non-refundable
fee per set. Payment can be submitted by credit card or company checkJmoney order made payable
to The Copy Store. Bidders must be registered with The Copy Store as having obtained a complete
set of Bidding Documents. Bids submitted on copies of Bidding Documents from other sources will
not be accepted.

Bidding Documents will be shipped from The Copy Store upon request and upon receipt of an
additional non-refundable shipping charge made payable to The copy Store.

Each proposal must be accompanied by a Bid Bond or a Certified Check in the amount of Ten
Percent (10%) of the bid price.

The Common Council of the City of Lockport, New York, reserves the right to reject any or all
proposals, to consider the reputation and experience of the Bidder in making its selection; to waive
any informalities or minor deviations from the specifications; and to award the contract to other than
the lowest bidder, if for good and sufficient reasons, it is considered in the best interest ofthe City of
Lockport, to do so.

Sarah K.Lanzo
City Clerk



CITY OF LOCKPORT, NEW YORK
LOCKPORT MLINICIPAL BUILDING

ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

OFFICE OF CITY CLERK
Sarah K. Lanzoo City Clerk

Emily Stoddard Dep. City Clerk/Registrar of Vital Statistics

BID OPENING

Office (716)439-6676
Fax (716)439-6702

.t6,"\ Q-rroOwner:

Project:

Bid Opening:

2 -oc(
M-24

K Nexedoe Radios Time:

Contractor Name Phone Number Service Bid Amount

{n (opwub.Au, T'( - 4G-gjL-L6?4 (J,,, {r+L gT"+.ql



Crrv or LocrpoRr
One Locks Plaza
Lockpod, New York 14094
(716) 439-6631
E-mail: trusso@lockportny.gov

TIMRUSSO
Director of Finance

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Procurement of Kenwood Nexedge Portable Radios and Accessories

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals for the services above will be received and considered by the
City of Lockport up to 2 pm on July 21st at the office of the City Clerk, municipal building one Locks plaza

Lockport NY,14094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the scope of work.

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockoortnv.eov with any questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and
experience of the Proposal in making its selectlon; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the
proposal form, and to award to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is considered
in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs associated with the
preparation of RFP(s).

Original Publish Date: June 19,2023
Edited on7/LU2023 to extend due date due to no bids being received.



Thank you for your interest in this project. lf you have any questions or require additional information,
please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at 716-439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportnv.eov.

J



O

1914 Colvin Blvd.
Tonawanda, NY 14150-6995

Phone: (716)832-2026
www.fmcommunications.com

www.facebook.com/fmcommunlcationsinc

Page 1

SALES

QUOTATION
112002033

Blll To:

LOCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT
ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

Vehicle #:

E#:
Order Status:

PT69525

71 NX-3320K

Shlp To:

LOCKPORT POLICE DEPARTMENT
ONE LOCKS PLAZA
LOCKPORT, NY 14094

7'.\

71

71

KRA-23M

KNB.55L

KSC-2sLSK

P.O. #:

KENWOOD NEXEDGE PORTABLE, 4OO.52O MHZ,
5W 260 CHANNEL, NO DISPI.AY
NON KEYPAD MODEL

ANTENNA, 450-49OMHZ, PORTABLE

BAITERY 1480MAH, Lt-tON

CHARGER, RAPID RATE, KNB.55U57U4OLC/68
ONLY

458.64 92,563.44

14.60

56.21

55.26

1,036.60

3,990.91

3,923.46

Thank you for the opportunity to quote the above items. Please do not
hesitate to call, fax, or e-mail any additional questions or concems.

lf requested to drill holes into a fixture (headlight, taillight, housing, etc.), we
do not wananty any issues that may arise from making these modifications.

Subtotal : $41,514.41
Tax: $0.00
TotalQuote: $41 ,514.41

Quote valid for 60 days

lt

Date: 05/09/2023 Customer Rep: Jodi Haynes Terms: NET 30 DAYS

otv Item Description Unit Price Extended

Customer approval needed prior to work performed.
(Signature, Print & Date)



Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Emily,

Can you add these commenfs fo the potholes email this week?

Thank yotl,
Sarah

lnfo@lockportny.gov
Thursday, July 13, 202310:21 AM
'Deputy City Clerk'
FW: [EXTERNAL] New submission from Contact Page

From : info@ lockportny.gov <info@ lockportny.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, July LL,202311:18 PM

To: info @ lockportny.gov
Subject: IEXTERNAL] New submission from Contact Page

DlSCLAIMER DISC],AIMER

Computer viruses and malware can be transmitted via emaj-l-. The recipient
shou1d check this ema11 and any attachments for the presence of viruses or
mal-ware.

The server administrator accepts no liability for any damage caused by arry
virus or malware transmitted by this emai1. E-maif transmissj-on cannot be
guaranteed to be secure or error-free as information could be intercepted,
corrupted, lost, destroyed, arrive late or incomplete, or contain viruses or
malware 

1

John Public

Millar Place
Lockport, New York 14094
United States
Map lt

Q1q 655-1212

fi llpotholes@smail.com

Please look into filling the numerous potholes on Millar Plaee,

Secondarily, replace the existing street signs to the correct name, from. Millar St to Millar Place



Deputv Citv Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

See below, for list

lnfo@lockportny.gov
Wednesday, July 19, 2023 1O:07 AM
'Deputy City Clerk'; 'Jennifer Wochna'
FW: [EXTERNAL] Tree removal

From: Robert Carlin <carlrb88@hotmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, July 18,2A2312:31 AM
To: info@lockportny.gov
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Tree removal

Can we please have the tree in front of 260 Niagara Street removed before it falls and does serious damage. I
have seen trees near me be removed even though they were not in as bad shape. I know the person requesting
was a former assemblyman but he will also lose power when this tree comes down. Thank you.

Sent on my Samsung Galaxy A51
Get Outlook for A{rdroid



UaL)n

July loth 2023

To whom it may concern,

On July L't 20231 was driving a Penske moving truck to move to my new house in the City of
Lockport. I was driving down Prospect Road and turned right onto Washington where the second tree
on the right had a very low hanging branch that ended up clipping the top passenger side of the moving
truck. The tree branch caught on the truck and ripped the tree pulling down multiple branches and an
electrical wire causing damage to the truck.

According to Lockport city code 776-9 i't clearly states that "Trees on any lot or land adjacent to
any public highway or public place and having branches projecting into the public high-way or place
shall, under the supervision of the Superintendent of Parks, be kept trimmed by the owner or owners or
occupant of the property on which such trees are growing so that the lowest branches shall not be less
than 15 feet from the ground."

The moving truck I was driving had a clearance level lower than that of the city code and should
not have come into contact with the branch. The tree in question is part of the city tree inventory list
located under site lD 426.

The city police were called where an ambulance and firetruck also arrived at the scene.
Neighbors along the street came out of their houses and saw the damage. Multiple witnesses stated
that they have been reaching out to the city of Lockport to have these trees trimmed and have been put
on a wait list that they claim has been years.

I am looking to discuss this matter with the intent to have the City of Lockport cover the cost of
any damage involving property, physical and emotional and move to have the accident removed from
my record.

Please let me know any further information that may be needed.
You may reach me at either my cell phone 71,6-534-4008 or email slennhillman(avmail.com
Looking forward to hearing from someone soon regarding this matter.

Thank you

Glenn Hillman

RECEIVED

JUL 1 3 2023

-

CITY CLERK OFFICE



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. El-80175 /2O23
RECETVED NYSCEF | 05/1,9/2023

TYLER METHVIN
1297 Norwood Drive
Lockport, New York 14094,

STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: NIAGARA COUNTY

SUMMONS

Index No.:
Plaintffi

Plaintiff Demands a Trial
By Jury of All Issues

CITY OF LOCKPORT
One Locks Plaza
Lockport, New York 14094,

Defendant.

TO TIIE ABOVE NAMED DEFENDANT:

YOU ARE HERBY SUMMONED, to answer the complaint in this action, and to serve a

copy of your answer, or, if the summons is not served with a complaint, to serve a notice of

appearance, on the Plaintiff s attorney within twenty (20) days afler service of this summons,

exclusive of the day of service, or within thrty (30) days after completion of service where service

is made in any other manner than by personal delivery within the State. In case of your failure to

appear or answer, judgment will be taken against you by default for the relief demanded in the

complaint.

Niagara County is designated as the place of trial based upon the residence of both the

Plaintiff and the Defendant.

v

lofT



rNDEX NO. 8180175/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06/19/2023NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

DATED: June 19,2023
Williamsville, New York

By:
CHRISTINA
The Kantor Gullo Law Firm, PLLC
Attorneys for the P laintif
348 Hanis Hill, Suite A
Williamsville, New York 14221
Phone: (716)626-0404
Fax (716) 626-0412
cgullo@kantorgullolaw.com (Not For Service)

2

2of7



NII RK
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

INDEX NO . E18 01"7 5 / 2O23

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06/r9/2023

STATE OF NEW YORK
SUPREME COURT: NIAGARA COUNTY

TYLER METHVIN,

PIaintifr,

VERIF'IED COMPLAINT

Index No.:
v

CITY OF LOCKPORT,
P laintiff Demands a Trial
By Jury of All Issues

Defendant

NOW COMES the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, by and through his attomeys, The

Kantor Gullo Law Firm, as for his Verified Complaint against the Defendant, CITY OF

LOCKPORT, states as follows:

1. At all times hereinafter mentioned, the Plaintiff,, TYLER METHVIN, was and still

is a resident of the County of Niagara, and State of New York.

2. At all times mentioned herein, the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, was and is

a duly organized and constituted municipal entity and govemmental subdivision of the State of

New York, with main offices located in the County of Niagara, State of New York.

3. That upon information and belief, the incident giving rise to this claim occurred on

or about the 25th day of October,2022, at approximately I 1:40 a.m., at or near the Market Street

and Exchange Street Intersection, in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, and State of New

York, property that, upon information and belief, is owned, sponsored, inspected, maintained,

inspected, studied and patrolled by the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, their agents, servants,

and/or employees.

4. On or aboutNovember 28,2022,aVerifiedNotice of Intentionto File a Claim was

filed against the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT.

3of7



r : NIAGARA
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX NO. E180175/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF : 06 /'t 9 /2023

5. The Verified Notice of Intention to File a Claim was served within ninety (90) days

after the cause of action in this matter accrued.

6. A hearing was conducted by the Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, pursuant to

General Municipal Law 50-h, on February 17,2023.

7. Thirty (30) days have elapsed since that claim has been filed, and the claim has not

been adjusted to resolution.

8. This action was timely commenced within one year and ninety days (1 year and 90

days) after the cause ofaction herein accrued.

9. The claim of TYLER METIIVIN is for personal injuries and damages, including

but not limited to: past and future lost wages, past and future medical expenses, past and future

pain, past and future suffering, and disfigurement.

10. On or about October 25,2022, at approximately I l:40 a.m.,the Plaintiff, TYLER

METHVIN, while driving his 2019 Harley Davidson Motorcycle, bearing the New York license

plate number: 49lAH3, eastbound on Market Street, brought his vehicle to a complete stop behind

a stop sign at Market Street's intersection with Exchange Street. After bringing his motorcycle to

a complete stop at the intersection of Market Street and Exchange Street, which was controlled by

a newly implemented four-way stop, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, was broadsided and struck

by a motor vehicle owned and operated by Dale R. Smith- who was traveling northbound on

Exchange Street and failed to stop at the stop sign conffolling the subject intersection.

I 1. Upon information and belief, the intersection of Market Street and Exchange Street

in the City of Lockport, County of Niagara, and State of New York was recently changed from an

intersection controlled by a traffic control signal/light to a four-way stop, following a meeting of

the traffic advisory meeting on October 17,2022 which resulted from a number of prior collisions

)

4of7



N
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

INDEX NO. El80175/2023

RECEIVED NYSCEF : 06 /L9 /2023

occuning at the subject intersection. This change was implemented without any signage present

to warn the public of said new traffic pattem.

12. Moreovet, upon information and belief, the intersection of Market Street and

Exchange Street in the City oflockport, County ofNiagara, and State of New York is only several

yards from a second-traffic light located on Exchange Street where it crosses the canal, whose

traffic light has a known history of causing confusion to motorists, resulting in a number of prior

collisions at the subject intersection.

13. Upon information and belief, the Defendant has prior notice of the dangers of the

subject intersection, which has resulted in a nurnber of collisions similar to that of the Plaintiffs,

involving motorists who fail to stop at the intersection and collide with other motorists.

14. As a result, the Plaintifq TYLER METHVIN, sustained severe personal injuries

due to the negligence, recklessness, and carelessness in the acts, or omissions to act, by the

Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, their agents, servants, and/or employees, for their: (l) failure

to properly study the road; (2) failure to properly guard; (3) failure to properly warn; (4) failure to

properly address prior complaints; (5) failure to properly inspect, maintain, repair, study, post and

pahol the roadway markings and signs; and (6) violation of the Defendant's special duty and/or

proprietary functions.

15. The accident and iniuries to Plaintiff. TYLER METHVIN. resulted from the

negligence, recklessness, and carelessness in the acts, or omissions to act, by the Defendant, CITY

OF LOCKPORT, their agents, servants, and/or employees, without any negligence on the part of

the Plaintiff contributing hereto.

16. The subject occuffence was reported to the local Police Department, and emergency

reports were filed with them.

J

5of7



ILED:
NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1

rNDEX No. E1Bo17s/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF : 06/L9/2023

17. As a result of the aforemenfioned, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, sustained

injuries and/or aggravated and exacerbated injuries including but not limited to: a right, acute,

transverse, comminuted midshafttibia and fibula fracture with displacementrequiring surgery and

corresponding scarring and disfigurement; and pressure ulcers on his occiput, sacrum/coccyx,

ischial tuberosity, and heel.

18. As a result of the serious injuries sustained by the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN,

the Plaintiff has and will suffer past and future medical expenses; past and future pain and

suffering; inability to work; inability to perform household duties; inability to perform normal

activities of daily living; susceptibility to future injury; disfigurement; and will suffer additional

damages into the future.

19. The amount of damages in this claim exceeds the jurisdictional limits of all lower

courts that would otherwise have jurisdiction.

20. That the Plaintiff, T\T,ER METHVIN, demands a trial by j,r.y of all issues.

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, demands judgment against the

Defendant, CITY OF LOCKPORT, in an amount to be determined by a jury upon hial of this

action, togetherwith the costs anddisbursements of the action, with any and all furtherrelief as

this court deems just and proper.

Dated: Iune 19.2023
Williamsville, New York

CHRTSTINA M. GULLO, ESQ.
The Kantor Gullo Law Firm, PLLC
Attorneys for the Plaintiff
348 Hanis Hill, Suite A
Williamsville, New Y ork I 4221
Phone: (716\626-0404

4

O UT I



NYSCEF DOC. NO. 1t

INDEX NO. E1801-'75/2023

RECETVED NYSCEF I O6/1,9/2023

VERIFICATION

The Plaintiff, TYLER METHVIN, being duly swom, deposes and says: that he has read the foregoing
Verified Complaint and knows its contents; the same is tue to his own knowledge, except as to those
matters therein as stated to be alleged on inforrnation and belief; and as to those mafiers he believes
to be true.

TYLERMETHVIN

Subscribed
rhisf6t?ay

and swom to before
of r.Jniu- ,2A23.

@Notary Public

NENEE I.. illeNO
ilOIANY PUBLIC.SNTE OF TIEW YOPr

ruo. 0t t{t6239S02
Quqlilod ln Nlogoro counlvr

lly comnhdon t,(ptrc. AP I t; 
lg

5

7of7



L

Crrv or Locxponr
One Locks Plaza
Lockpoft,NewYork 14094
(716) 439-6631
E-mail : trusso@lockportny.gov

TIM RUSSO
Director of Finance

REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS

The City of Lockport is requesting sealed proposals for

Water and Sewer Master lnfrastructure Plan

Notice is hereby given that sealed proposals for the services above will be received and considered by the
City of Lockport up to 2 pm on June 21st at the office of the City Clerk, municipal building, One Locks Plaza
Lockport NY, 1-4094.

Proposers will provide one written quote that contains the total cost of the scope of work,

Please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at7L6-439-6776 or citv.clerk@lockportny.eov with any questions.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any or all proposal, to consider the reputation and
experience of the Proposal in making its selection; to waive any informalities or minor deviations from the
proposal form, and to award to other than the lowest quote, if good and sufficient reasons, it is considered
in the best interest of the City of Lockport to do so. The City will not reimburse any costs associated with the
preparation of RFP(s).

Publish Date: May 3A,2023



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFPI

Master lnfrastructure Plan for City Water and Sewer lnfrastructure

lntroduction:

The City of Lockport, NY, is a small community located in western New York State, with a population of
approximately 20,000 people, The city has a rich history, dating back to the 19th century when it was a

major industrial hub, with significant manufacturing and transpoftation industries. Today, Lockport is a mix
of residential and commercial areas, with a unique character and charm that attracts visitors from all over.

One of the significant challenges facing the City of Lockport is its aging water and sewer infrastructure. Like

many other communities in the United States, Lockport's water and sewer systems are outdated and
require significant investment to maintain and upgrade. The city's infrastructure is subject to various issues,

such as pipe failures, leaks, and inadequate capacity, which can pose health hazards and disrupt the lives of
residents. Given the essential role that water and sewer systems play in the daily lives of residents, it is

crucial to address these issues and develop a comprehensive plan to ensure that Lockport's infrastructure
can meet the needs of its diverse population.

To address the challenges facing Lockport's water and sewer infrastructure, the City is seeking proposals for
a Master lnfrastructure Plan. This plan willtake into account the unique geographic, economic, and
demographic factors of the City and develop a roadmap for addressing current and future challenges. A
comprehensive plan can help ensure that Lockport's water and sewer systems are efficient, reliable, and
meet the needs of its residents for years to come. The development of a Master lnfrastructure Plan is an

essential step in maintaining and upgrading the City's infrastructure and supporting the continued groMh
and development of the community.

Scope of Work:

The selected firm will be responsible for conducting a thorough analysis of the City's water and sewer
infrastructu re, includ ing:

A comprehensive assessment of the condition of the existing water and sewer infrastructure,
including pipes, pumps, valves, and other components.

An evaluation of the capacity of the existing water and sewer systems to meet current and
future demand.

An analysis of the City's water and sewer policies and regulations to ensure compliance with
state and federal regulations.

ldentification of areas of concern, such as areas with high levels of water loss or sewer backups,
and an analysis of the causes of these issues.

ldentification of potential funding sources for recommended improvements.

o

a

o

a

2



The selected firm will be required to develop a Master lnfrastructure Plan that includes the following:

A detailed assessment of the existing water and sewer infrastructure, including a description of
the condition ofthe infrastructure and areas of concern.

Recommendations for improvements to the water and sewer systems, including a prioritized list
of projects and estimated costs,

A review of the City's water and sewer policies and regulations, including any recommended
updates.

ldentification of potentialfunding sources for recommended improvements, including grant
opportunities and financing options.

A detailed implementation plan for recommended improvements, including a timeline and
estimated costs for each project.

Deliverables:

The selected firm will be required to submit a final report that includes the following:

A detailed assessment of the existing water and sewer infrastructure, including a description of
the condition ofthe infrastructure and areas of concern.

Recommendations for improvements to the water and sewer systems, including a prioritized list
of projects and estimated costs.

A review of the City's water and sewer policies and regulations, including any recommended
updates.

ldentification of potential funding sources for recommended improvements, including grant
opportunities and financing options.

A detailed implementation plan for recommended improvements, including a timeline and
estimated costs for each project.

A summary of the key findings and recommendations of the Master lnfrastructure Plan, suitable
for public dissemination.

Proposal Requirements:

Proposals should include the following

o A description of the firm's qualifications and experience conducting similar studies.
. A proposed timeline for completing the Master lnfrastructure Plan, including key milestones.
o A detailed scope of work, including a description of the methodology that will be used to

develop the Master lnfrastructure Plan.

o A proposed budget for the project, including all costs associated with the project.
r A list of references from similar projects.

a

a

a

a

a

a

a

J



Proposal Submission:

Proposals should be submitted in paperformat to the City of Lockport, NV, by the deadline of June 2t,2023
at 2 pm, Proposals should be addressed to:

City of Lockport, NY

Attn: Master lnfrastructure Plan RFP

l" Locks Plaza

Lockport, NY 14094

A digital version of the submission should also be electronically emailed to the City Clerk at
city, clerk@ lockportny.gov.

Evaluation Criteria:

Proposals will be evaluated based on the following criteria:

o Qualifications and experience of the firm and its team members.
o Proposed methodology and scope of work.
o Proposed timeline for completing the Master lnfrastructure Plan.
r Proposed budget and cost-effectiveness.
r References from similar projects.

The City of Lockport, NY reserves the right to reject any and all proposals and to waive any irregularities or
informalities in the proposal process.

A committee will be appointed by the Mayor that will evaluated the submissions. Please note that this RFP

does not obligate the City to select a bidder or accept a bid at this time or any time in the future. The City
can at its sole discretion revise the requirement, scope, and selections process for this RFP at any time.

Thank you for your interest in this project. lf you have any questions or require additional information,
please contact City Clerk Sarah Lanzo at776-439-6776 or citv.clerk@locknortnv.sov.

4



Gity of Lockport
Water & Sewer
Master Infrastructure Plan

4 Commercial Street I Suite 300 | Rochester, NY 14,614

Plrone: 585.327.7950 | Fax: 585.327.7949 | Web: wwwhunt-eas.com

Water Systems Engineering Services
Timothy Steed, PE
Principal-in-Charge

June 21,2A23



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U N T tNGTNIrrRS r ARCrrrl'.crs r suRVryoRs



02
EXPERIENCE &
QUATIFICATIONS

HUNT & King Firm Profiles
Organizational Chart
'I'eam Resumes
Engineering Services
Project Examples

o4
BUDGET & COSTS

Fee & Schedule Page

o3

o1
COVER TETTER

SCOPE OF WORK &
METHODTOGY

Scope of Work Understanding
Planning Approach

o5
REFERENCES

H U N T tNGrNnrRs r ARCHrrrcrs r suRvryoRs Table of Contents



This Page Intentionally Left Blank

H U N T tNcrNnnRs r ARcHrrlrcrs r suRVEyoRs



Water &

lune 21,2023

City Clerk, Sarah Lanzo
City of Lockport, NY
Attn: Master Infrnstructure Plan RFP
I Locks Plaza
Lockport, NY 14094

RE: Master Plan for City Water & Sewer Infrastructure

Dear Sarah and Team:

On behalf of Hunt Engineers, Architects, Land Surveyors, and Landscape Architect, DPC (HUNT), I am pleased to
submit a response to your Request for Proposal (RFP) for Engineering Services for the City of Lockp ort's Master Plan
-for Ci!/ t4rater & Sewer Infrastru.cture. Being a full-service firm, we are able to complete the scope of work efficiently and
expeditiously with our High Falls' office and the rest of our 180 employees working together. Furthermore, in anticipation
<f future funding requirement fcrr MWBE participation, we have partnered with Lockport's own Susan King Vope o{ rcing
Consulting Engineers (t Land Surveyors, PC. Susant longstanding engineering professionalism and familiariiy rn'ith the
Lockport system will be an enormous asset in for project success. Our two teams together are rnore than capable to surpass
your expectations.

Scope of Work, Understanding
The HUNT Team fully und.erstands the Scope of Services as outlined in the RIIP, as well as outlined during otu. preliminary
conversations and tour with City Engineer Steven Pump and Bob Lawson. Specifcally, HUNT recognizeshat..'."Lockportis
wa.ter and sewer systems are outdated and require signifcant investntent to maintain and upgrade. The city\ infrastricture is
subject to various issues, xtch as piltefailures, leaks, and inadequate capacity, which can posi heahh hazaids and disrupt the
lives ofresidents".

Comprised by a multi-faceted team of engineers and design professionals with extensive experience in developing lasting
water and sewer system improvements, HUNT will work closely rryith the City to provide a full range of engineering
services, including: 1) a preliminor;r n5r"rr*"nt of existing conditions and the systems' capacity to "meet cirrrent arid
future demand";2) an analysis of the City's compliance with state and federal regulations; and, 3) framed within the Master
Plan itself, the creation ofa prioritized, multi-year improvement plan propelled by'grant opportunities and financing
options". HUNT's strength in perfonning infrastructure and asset management analysis and the subsequent creation-of
multi-year plans is a hallmark of our finrrt 50-year history.

Master Planning -- from "Studythrough Funding", A HUNT Differentiator
In considering our Lockport team members, references, and project approach, we returned several times to the need
to highlight our ability to take client partners like Lockport from "study through funding'l That capacity - systematic
infras.h'ucture and facility analysis, prioritization of tasks within the Master PIai, and assiiting in grints andjunding ffirts
-,has been positively received and widely praised by our mosL lecent clients at Bloomfield, Canclor, Rornulus, Napls, and
Olean. Wc would proudly bring that sarne exhaustive and comprehensive approach to bear on behalf of Lockpori. It is a
"holistic" process that takes into account roadways, SWPPPs, sanitary & stormwater systems, etc...

HLINT Team
HUNT's ability to assist Lockport was recently bolstered by the addition to our tearrr of Nick Bayer, PE. Nick's water
collection expertise nicely complements Project Manager Bryan White, PE s water-system strengths. They understand
T,ockport's desire to focus on distribution (water) and collection (sanitary and storm) systems, and their perspectives are
clearly expressed in the Project Approach below.

H U N T rNcrNErRs r ARcr{rrrcrs r suRvryoRs
1 4 Commcrcial Stlcct I Suitc 300 | Rochcster, Ny 14614

Phone: 585.327.7950 | Fax: 585.327.7949 | Web: wwl+rhunr-eas.com



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U l\ T rnNGrNrf.Rs r A Rcrrr1'ricrs r suRVryoRs
2



As Principal-in-Charge, I'll be pleased to coordinate the following full-service team members: Tammy Kunzman (Grant
Writing); Tomas Klaseus, PE and Harley Connelly (Water Systems); Steven Hall (GIS and Hydraulic Modelling); Ben
Wolfling, PE (Water and Sewer Design); Andy Kinsley, PE (Roadways); and Greg Barr, PE (MEP/HVAC) ....Moreover,
I can ensure Lockport that the Master Planning team will have all the necessary scheduling, personnel, and financial
resources needed to make the Infrastructure Master Plan process a short- AND long-term success.

HUNT's High Falls, Rochester office is located within an easy drive of Lockport making easy our evaluation and any
meeting coordination. HUNT has recently been involved with significant water projects within the municipalities of Penn
Yan, Honeoye Falls, Erie and Ontario Counties, as well as recent CDBG studies for the City of Salamanca and the Town of
Bath which directly address water and sewer concerns.

We appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal and look forward to a partnership with the City. Please feel free to
contact me at (507) 358-1000 x1063, or by email at SteeilT@HtlNIT-EAS.com, so I can make the team available to address
any questiotls. In addition, we would be happy to have you reach out to our references to confirm our ability to exceed your
expectations.

Sincerely,
Architects, Land Surveyors & Landscape Architect, DPC

Ft

Principal-in-Charge

H U N T TNcINI'ERs r 

^RcHrrF.crs 
r suRvnyoRs

3 4 Commercial Street I Suite 300 | Rochestet NY 14614
Phone: 585.327 .7950 | Fax: 585.327.7949 | Web: wwwhunt-eas.com



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H UNTrNGrNrrRs r ARcHrrncrs rsuRvryoRs
4



Hunt Engineers, Architects & Lan

Hlllo'tl1l'?",i?"oifl l1t3*"
Architect, DPC (dba HUNT) has
its headquarters in Horseheads, New
lbrk, and currently has l2 licensed
prolbssionals, our Director of Finance,
and our Director of Technology
as stockholders. Celebrating over
50 years in business, the firm
specializes in consulting and design
for educational, i nstitutional, and
private sector facilities (architecture
and building systems, interior design,
campus amenities, and athletic fields),
municipal infrastructure (water and
wastewater systems, storm water
management), state, county, and
local transportation facilities, and
technology consulting and design.

www.hunt-eas.com

Towanda, PA O

urveyo

Rochester, NY

Horseheads, NY O

Albany, NY O

O Binghamton, NY

251 New Karner Road
Albany, NY 12205

p: (607) 798-8081
f: (607) 798-8185

143 Court Street
Binghamton, NY 13901

p: (607) 798-8081
f: (607) 7e8-8186

Airport Corporate Park
100 Hunt Center
Horseheads, NY 14845

p: (607) 3s8-1000
fi (607) 3s8-1800

4 Commercial Street
Suite 300

Rochester, NY 14614
p: (58s) 327-79s0
f: (s8s) 327-7949

Progress Plaza
I Elizabeth Street
Suite 12

Towanda, PA 18848
p: (s70) 26s-4868
f: (s70) 265-4872

H U N T.NGrNnrRs r 

^RcHrrrcrs 
r suRvnyoRs Company Profile

5



ffi
!c@

;l

rl

it

ts
Bob Hunt and
Newt Gowdy
form the initial
partnership that
endures today.

HUNT purchases
Connell & Hersh
Architects of
Corning, adding
architecture to
its survey and
engineering
services.

The purchase
of Hasenauer &
Sovic Consulting
Engincers of
Canadaigua
moves HUNT
into the Rochester
inarket, where it
continues to have
a strong presence.

The purchase
of trvo firms in
Williamsport,
PA, adds clients
and personnel to
HUNT's roster.

Following the
purchase of FM
Technologies,
15 employees
begin work at
I..IUNT's offices
at the Gorsline
Building in
Rochester's
historic High
Falls District.

1OO HUNT
staffmembers
move ir:to the
new 18,000 SF
facility on Daniel
Zenker Drive in
Horseheads, NY.

Bob Hunt retires,
and Dan Bower,
|ohn Cake and
Chuck Franzese
assume ownership
of the firm.

IIUNT expands
again as its
Towanda, PA
office opens to
bctter service
Northern Tier
clients.

r

HUN I"s growth
continues as its
staffreachcs 100
professionals
and support
personnel.

IIUNT celebrates
40 years of
serving its clients

Dan Bower, fohn Cake
and Chuck !'ranzese step
down from the Board of
f)irectors, and leaders in
other areas transitioned
into the new HUNT BOD,
including Chris Bond as

Presiden( and CE,O, Greg
Barr and f)arin Rathbun
as Vicc Prcsidents, Tim
Steed as Corporate
Secretary, and Dean
Hackett ancl |eff Robbins.

rffilI t.rtr, HUNI,,O''To allolv a percentage of
non-licensed stalf to hold
ownership of the firin,
HUNT oflicially changed
its forrn of corporation
and name to Hunt
Engineers, Architects,
Land Surveyors &
Landscape Architect, DPC.

s&n
HUNT celebrates 50 years
of serving it.s clients
and acquires Shumaker
Consulting, Engineering, &
Land Sulvef ing. Expalding
geographic outreach with
offices in Binghamton, NY
and Albany, NY.

f

tr
n
tr

tr
tr

Firm
History
Since L973

Today, HUNT
has developed into a
multidisciplinary design fi rm
including I4 shareholders and
I4 associal"es. HUNT c<lntinues
to strengthen its reputation
as a premier provider of
professional services within the
nrarry discipJines encornpassing
engineering, architecture, and
surveying. The firm's cliversified
portfolio includes projects of
varying sizes across the public
and private sectors.

H U N T TNGTNTF.RS r 

^RCr{rrn.'s 
r suRVEyoRs Company Profile

6



Staffing Level
187 Employees, l0 Seasonal Construction Inspectors

Licensed Professionals
57 QS Engineers, 14 Architects, 4 Landscape Archite cts,7 Surveyors,

2 Geologists, 2 Registered Communications Distribution Designers)

en

14 licensed architects, 4 licensed engineers

14 licensed engineers, 7 licensed land surveyors,
4 licensed landscape architects, 2 licensed geologists

l0licensed engineers

2 design and integration certifications

Architecture & Buildings Systems:
Architecture, Interior Design, MEP Engineering

Municipal Engineeringr
Survey, Site Design, Environmental Engineering

Transportation & Struetural:

Tech nologly Gonsulti ngl, Design
& Integration:

Principals
Christopher J. Bond, PE (NY" PA, VT, DE)
Chief Executive Offi cerlPresident

Kim D. Abbott
Director of Finance

Greg J. Barr, PE, LEED AP (NY, PA)
Vice President

Nathan G. Binns, PE (NY, PA)

Barry J. Dumbauld, PE (NE PA)
l)irector of Transportation

Ryan P, Garrlson
Director of l'echnolo gy

John D. Gleckner Jr., PE (NY, PA)

Luke Grasmeyer, RtA (NX PA)

Dean C, Hackett, RLA, LEED AP (NY)
Vice President of Business Services

Gary E. Henry, AIA (NY, PA)

Darin L. Rathbun, PE (NY, PA, MD, Ni)
Vice President

Kristi L. Rathbun, PE (NY, PA, VA)
letltey M. Robbins, AIA (NY, PA)
l)irector of Architecture

Timothy K, Steed, PE (NY, PA, NJ)
Corporate Secretary

B
T!

It
ll

I
I

. ,|

H U f\ T TNGINLF.RS r ARclrr-rcrs r suRvnyoRs Company Profile
7



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U ll T rNGINIrIiRs r 
^Rcrrr'F.c'rs 

r suRVryoRs
8



l$ng @nsufting Engineers & Land Surveyingn FG
3284 Walden Avenue

Depew, NY 1 4043 Te|716.677 .5464

Corporate Overview

Established in May 1994by Susan M. King, L.S., P.E., King Consulting Engineers & Land
Surveying, P.C. (KCE) is a multi-discipline engineering firm specializing in land surveying, civil
and environmental engineering.

KCE is certified as a Woman-owned Business Enterprise (WBE). Our staff has registrations in
New York and California for Civil Engineering and Land Surveying. Ms. King serves on the
New York State Board of Engineering and Land Surveying.

The KCE staff of registered professional engineers, surveyors, designers and construction
inspectors utilizes current technology to assist in completing each project. Equipment includes
electronic total stations, data collectors, automatic and digital levels, drafting and engineering
software, full size plotter and laser printer.

Staff at KCE is comprised of career individuals committed to providing quality work for our
clients. Each member has at least 18 years experience in one or more of the following:

. Boundary Surveying

. NYSDOT Highway Survey & Mapping

. Topographic Mapping

. Precision Control Traversing

. Volumetric and Earthworks Survey

. Civil Engineering

. Hydrology

. EnvironmentalEngineering

. Constructionlnspection

9



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H UllTtNGrNtIlRs IARcrr11'cc rs IsuRV.yoRs
10



Project Management Team

Tim Steed, PE
Principal-in-Charge/
Water System Expert

Bryan White, PE
Project Manager/

Water System Engineering

Desi Team

NickBayer, PE
Water System &

Environmental Engineering

fonatha Meade, PE
Site, Stormwater & SWPPP

Expertise

Ben Wolfling, PE Andy Kinsley, PE
Site/Civil Engineering Transportation Engineering

Harley Connelly King Consulting
Water Systems Engineering Surveying, Environmental &

& Expertise Civil Engineering

Tomas Klaseus, PE
Water System

Regulatory Expert

H U NTTNGTNEnRs r 

^RcHrrncrs 
r suRVDyoRs

11
Organizational Chart



This Page lntentionally Left Btank

H U N T rNcrNnnRs r 

^RcHrrrcrs 
r suRVEyoRs

12



Professlonal
Reglstration

TimothyKSteedn PE
Princip allDrcector of Civil Engineering

Tim Steed is a key member of the I{UNT project tean-rs that provide civil engineering services to clients in the public and
private sector. Tirn is au expert in municipal water modeling, design of water supply and distribution systems, designs for
rvastewater treatment and collection, and storm water control.

Tirn's experience as a client/project manager enables him to e{ficiently manage environmental engineering, including
cleveloping hyclrologic studies ancl designing pumping ancl u'astewater [reatnent lacilities.

Selected Proiect Experience
Education

Town of Springwater, Water & Server System Studies, Springwater, NY
The Torvn of Springn'ater had received violtrtions for their gloundwater supply well being
under the iufluence of surface water as r.ve11 as inabiliry of their wastewater treatment plant to
nreet eflluent limits. The 'Ibu'n desired to investigate thc. overall systenr and identify any water
and wastewater system shortcomings that may be contributing to these violations or identify
portions of the system that do not meet standards. Tim worked with the Town Boatd along
with the water & rvastewater operators to cor.nplete a corlprehensive stridy of the existing
water and lt'astewater systeln, identif'system deficiencies, evaluate irnprovernent alternatives,
prioritize itnprovements, develop cost estirnates, and to identily a preferred solution. 'lhese

studies wer:e utiiized to secure various grants ar-rd loans. As a result, the Torvn completed
various water systcm improvcmcnts and alc in thc process o1'completing significant upgrades
to their wastervater collection and treatnrent systems.

Guthrie Healthcare Systems, Inc., Replacement Corning Hospital, Corning, NY
Project Manager on site/civil design for new $100 million hospital facility.'Ihis included overall
site design, new water: storage tar-rk and nrunicipal systeln extension, nelv wastewater lift station
and resulting 2 mile force rnain, l-relipad, off-street parking areas, site access, ADA accessible
routes, green stormlvater management practices, lighting design and extension of NYSDOT
thoroughfare. This project also resulted in aligr.rment modi{ications trnd alterations to \4rinfield
Creek. Coordinated with client and agencies to obtain the necessary local and state approvals.

Village of Angclica, Water System Improvements, Angelica, NY
Provided design of the transmission rnain inclucling autornatic blow ofl r'alves to allow the
eflicicnt r.novement of the watcr from the Village's spring house 4.3 miles east of the commlrnity
to their distribution and storage systems. Ilis efforts included modeling tl-re Villaget system for
future analysis.

Town of Dryden, Sanitary Sewer Collection System Study, Dryden, NY
IrrojecL Manager for clcsign to continuously monitor lvastewater flows in strategic portions of
tlre Town olDryden wastewater collection systern usir.rg multiple 1'low monitorir.rg strategies
including are a-vclocity metering and Palrler-Bowlus irr conjunctiou with ultraviolct level
sensors.

NewYork,

ong

Ton'n of Vestal, CMOM/Sanitary Sewer Inflou'and Infiltration Study, Town of
Vestal, NY
Project Manager: for development of a Capacitl', Management, Opelation and Maintenance
Plan (CMOM) and an lnllow and lnliltration Study lo alleviate increased flows rvithin their
collections system clue to tl.re inflolv of storm water and ground u'ater inliltration. The CMOM
developed an overall plan to determine lvhere system irnprovernents were necessary and
included preparation of a Server Over{low and Emergency Response Plan (SOIIRP), a Ilealth

H U N! T tN(i r N r rl r{s r A rtc rr'T E c's r su *\, r-ry o R s
13

Resurnes



and Safef Plau and a "\Vork Order" system for Torvn implementation. I{UNT also modeled
the sewer collection system using Innovyze InfoServer compriter software.

Village of Endicott, CMOM PIan, Village of Endicott, NY
Project Manager for preparation of a CMOM Plan to address problems related to large flows
during storms and wet weather, as well as spills and overflorvs in the sewer coilections system,
and a sanitary sewer main maintenance policy for the Village. HUNT also prepared a Seu'er
Overflow and Ernergency Response Plan (SOERP), a Hetrlth and Safety Plan and a "\{ork
Order" system for the Vllage to implernent.

Village of Savona, NewWater System, Savona, NY
Design Er.rgineer for the design and management for the complete design of a new water
distribution system, supply, and storage facilities to include preparation of a Storm Water
Pollution Plevention Plan (SWPPP).

Town of Erwin, Coopers Plains/Long Acres Water System, Cooper Plains, NY
Completed design of a significant water system expansion including 30,000 ft. of watermain,
500,000 gallon water storage faciliry rechlorination station and all associated site work (security
fencing, grading, restoration, etc.). Due to the nature ofthe expansion and intricate sequence
of cotrstruction was developed to rninimize interruptions of existing water system customers.
Design included preparation of coutract documents and provision of bidding assistance.

Village of Bath, Water Distribution Study, Bath, NY
Conducted a comprehensive study of tl-re Viilage's water distribr.rtion system which services
approximately 6,600 persons. Study included utilization of computer trodeling to evaluate
approximately 70 miles of rvatermain.

Village of Waverly, Various Projects, Wavedy, NY
Hydraulic Study - Design Engineer: Completed a cornprehensive study of a water supply and
distribution system consisting of a water filtration plant, four groundwater supply wells, a water
storage tank, and approximately l5 miles of watermain. The study included the evaluation
of available water supply and storage in relation to peak water clernand from which it was
determined that an additional 1.3-MG water storage and 400 GPM of water supply was
necessary

Water System Analysis and Funding.lnvestigation - Design Engineer:
Funding was sought out for the Village of Waverly to complete many necessaly irnprovements
including the construction of a netv 1.5-MG water storage tank, a new groundwater supply well
and various watermain improvements. A grant of approximately $900,000 rvas obtained from
the United States Departrnent of Agriculture (Rural Development) in additior.r to a low interest
loan of nearly $2, 100,000.

H U N T TNGTN!rF.Rs r ARcr 
'ricrs 

r su*vF-yo*s
14

Resumes



Bryan T, Whiten

Bryan White has 12+ years of civil and environmental engineering experience and coustruction inspection. The majority
of his experience,involves project engineering ancl management duties for floocl damirge repairs and protection, water
and u'astewater design, and_var:i_o-tts site.designs for municipal and private clients. Bryan's versatility rrnd depth of project
knowledge allows him. to offer HUNT clients the follolving skill sets: conceptual plans and estimates, final designs,
agency pern-ritting,-bidding, construction observations, and project close-outs. these eflbrts have seen him navigating the
cou-rplexity of MWRR, DOS, FEMA, CDBG, DASNY, and otl.rer grant progralrs.

Education
Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute,
Troy, N1', BS, Civil Engineerilrg,
200t3

Professional
Reglistration
Profbssional Engineer,
Ne\.v York, 099B84, 20i8
OSI{A 10

Skills
AUTOCAD CiVil3D
Carlson Site Design

Adobe Suite

Selected Proiect Experienee
Cify of Salamanca, General Engineering Tenn Agreement, Salamanca, NY
Ploject lvlanager and Project lingineer serving as main point oIcontact lor the City of
Salanranca for r.nultiplc projects sincc Septemb cr 2021 , inciuding a CDBG fr.rndccl Watcr
Systcm Study olthe City'.s water infrastructurc, an EFC EPG funded I/I Study of {ive specific
sewersheds, the Fire Department'.s bathroom and locker room renovations to iiccomlnodate
a new lernale firefighte r, the Veteran's Menrorial Park stone arch repair s, and gener al services
as agleed upon by the City 6ni HUNT under the General Engineering Term agr-eement.
Resporrsible 1br the coordination of multiple clisciplines rvithin the fir'm to deliver products in a
prolessional and timely manner.

Selteca County, NYS Route 414 Server Rehabilitation - Phase l, Seneca County, NY
Ploject mzlnage r for the completiou of clesign trnd implenrentation of a prcrzious inflow ancl
infiltration stucly on a section of sanitary selver main frorn the NYS lhruway to a discharge
into tl.re Seueca lralls sewer systern. Project included field investigalions of existing sanitary
sewcr manholes, recomlnendations lcrr improvenrents - inclurling replacemcnts of frame and
covers, ccmcntitious and epoxy lining of r.nanholes, and replaccment ol a manhole withir.r a
wctland, projcct cost estimates, and dcsign documcnts.

Hamlet of Willard Water District Water Systern Lnprovements, Romulus (T), NY
'llte Town of Romulus'Willard \4latcl l)istlict receives its chlorirratccl lr.'ater frorn the
NYSDOCCS'Wi1lard Drug Treatmcnt Cenler that is sourced florn Scncca Lake. The najority
ofthe district's system ia'as installed jn 1955 lvith now undersized and deteriorating cast iron
pipc. As Projcct Manager, Bryan coordinatccl thc completion of a PER, ERR, and clcsign
documents for specific replacements throughout the systern to improve the lvater quality
and iucreerse fire protection, as well as assist in applying for and successfully gettirrg the toivn
awarded $1,250,000 from CDBG for constmction of the project in2023.

Town of Locke Water Systern Improvements, Locke, NY
Utilizing a portion ol the Towr* ,ARPA funds, HUNT was tasked with a tight tin.reline for
evaluating the existing water systeln, der.eloping a PER with proposed project improvements,
providing engitreering estinrates fol the irnproverncrlts and begin applying for grants. The
Tott'nt rvater system lhat was originally constructetl over 100 years ago currently consists of
two supply 'n ells, an elevated watel storage tank, and distr:ibution rnains that curlently has an
undcrlrcrforming wcll and detcriorating storage tank. As Project Manager, Br'1ran svsl5nw th.
assessment of the system, PER, and project costs, coordinated with sutrcontractors and the
Tou'r-r tbr rvell atssessmeuts, and assisted rvith environr-r-rental review anci applying for grants.

H U l\ T rN G r 
^t 

l. l:. ri s r A u c r r r' 11 cl s r sri *v r,ry ( ) n s
15

Resumes



{fu+

NicholasA. Bayer, PE
Proj ect Manager/Water Systems Leader

Nick 13ayer fo9us99 on uratL'r lrea{nrent projects in his role as a IIUNT Project Managcr and Environnrental Engineer. IIis
experietrce is highlightecl by several large infrastructure improvernent proiects at municipal n'astet\raler treatrnent facilities,
as nell as his academic eflorts researching iunovative hiologictrl nutrient removal treatment processes. Nick'.s experience
includes bid-phase services, construcliot.t-erdn-rinislral-ion services, ancl prclject mallagement, as well as preparation of
er-rgineering_drawir.rgs, calculations, reports, technical specificatior-rs, ancl sul.rport for grant funding progr,rins. HUNT's
clients benefit frorn his disciplined rrttentiolr to detajl and cornrnitrnent to cluality engineer:ing.

Seleeted Project Experience
Education
Universit)' of Rochester, Sin.ron
Business School, Executive MBA,
Finance,2023

Llniversity of \fisconsin, lr{adison,
\{I, 14.S. Environmental
Engineering Lervis Hanford Kessler'
Fellort'ship, 2018

State University of NY at Buft'alo,
Bufirrlo, NY, B.S. Environrnent'.rl
Engineering, 2014

Professional
Reglistration
Pro fessi on:rl En g i neer,
Neu'lbrk, 104001,2023

Affiliations
Nelg York Water Environment
Associatior-r

Genesee \ralley Chapter Treasurer

Air and l,Vaste Managernent
Association

\Vater Environnrent Federation

Continuing Education
OSI{A 1O-hour Training Conrse

Town of Wayland, Loon Lake Sewer Systern Evaluation, Wayland, NY
-lhc New York Statc Dcpaltlncnt cl1'Environnrcnttrl Consclvation (DIIC), in conjunction
rvith the Nerv York Statc llnvironrnental lracilitics Corporatiun (I1FC), ai.vardecl Wayland
an Enginecring Planning Grant o{'$30,000 in late 2021 to help the Town pa1' for thc initial
planning of eligible Clean Water State Revolving Funcl (CWSRF) water quality projects.
W?ryland'.s spccilic goal was to bring rnunicipal sewer to the area around Loon Lake to soh.e the
degradatiort of tvater quarlity ctrused by the areat privately orvne d, on-site wastewater tretrtment
systems. Nick joins a l{UN 1' tearn that has played a supportive role for the 'lbwn througli each
stePr 6f1hs Projcct.

Town of Bath, Lake Salubria & Kanona Water System Evaluation, Bath, NY
Lack of ',vater service in the Kanona/Lake Salubria areas hiive stymied economic clevc.lopment
opportunities and has long been a concern of many residents in the irreii. Nick joins his
HUNT colleagues to rvork closely with the 'lbwn of llath on the proposed tvatcr system
initiatives. -[hese initiatives were dctcn'nined through a comprehensive Prelirninarl'
Jlngir.rccring Rcport that was clcvclopccl by collaborating closely q'ith involvcd membcrs
of the '[bwn, anti tneeting witlr interested partncrs/businesses o{'the county (i.e., \,Vilkins
RV, NYSDOl', NYSDOIi, Bath Electric Gas and \Vater Systerns). The study investigated the
extensiot't of rvater frorrt the Villagc o1'Batli to the Torvn and r,r'as nsed to develop ltnding
applications to the USDA I{D, NYS El'C Drinking Wzrter Sl.trle Revolving Loan Fund, NYS
Ofllce o1 Cornmunity Renewal Community Developmort Block Grant, ancl other state &
fcdcral proerar-us.

'lhis u,ork w(rs conlpletetl before Nick johrcd the IIUNT' teum.

Village of Warsarv,'Wastewater Treatrnent Facility Improvements, Warsaw, NY
Project Manager for Llie $i6.0 Million upgracle project at the Warsaw \,VWTFI Upgrades inclucle
construction o{ttr,r'o nerv aerobic digestel:s, a der.vatering and aeration blorver facility, a UV
disint'ectior-r s)/stcln, and various l)r'occss equiprncnt and site irnplorzements. 'l1e project is
fundetl with a 30-year 096 inl-crcst loan through thc Nerv Vrrk State Environmental l:acilitics
Corporatiorr ar:rd a \A/ater Quality Lrproverlent Project grant.

Village of LeRoy, \4/astelvater Treatment Facility Improvernents, LeRoli NY
Project Manager responsiblc fcrr ihe $ I2.0 Million upgrade project at thc LeRoy WWTE
Upgr-adcs inciutlc construction of a nclv inllue nt ancl hcaclrvotl<s builcling, no,v pr-irnary clar-ifie r
and nrodifications to lhe existing primarl' clariher, netv scrc\^r frun-rfrs, activilted shrdge process
improvetnents, installation o1'nerv aeration blolvers, and shiclge handling frrocess upgrades
inclueling two nerv atraerobic digesters, rrs well as the trcltlition of a UV tlisinlection systent.
Challcngcs included a SPI)ES pernrit rencwal rvith stricter amrnonia rernoval lintits and the
desirc fol Class A Biosolicls productior.r. The projcct is funded with a 30-year 096 intcrest loan
lhrough thc Ncw Yrrrk Statc i:r'rvir-oumcntal l:racilil.ics Corpulation.

H U N T nNc r N r-ir, Rs 
^ 

r{c rL''r' r.:c'r's I s L: *\r riyo n s
16

Resumes



City of Corning Wastewater Treatment Facility Capital Improvements Project
Report, Corning NY
Project Manager responsible for the construction of a new UV system and chemical feed
facility. Additionally, conducted an evaluation ofthe existing facility infrastructure and
planning for future needs at the Corning WWTF. The report recommends a project that plans
for a design life of 20 years including headworks improvements, new influent lift pumps,
primary and secondary clarifier improvements, roughing filter geodesic dome cover, digester
boiler upgrades, and a septage receMng station.

Livingston County Water and Sewer Authority, WWTF Disinfection Study,
Livonia, NY
Project Engineer responsible for the preparation ofthe engineering report which was
successfully submitted for $767,250 in grant funding through the \,Vater Quality Improvement
Project program. The report evaluated alternatives to disinfect effluent from the Lakeville
WWTF in compliance with SPDES permit requirements. Alternatives evaluated included UV
ozone, and chlorine disinfection. The recommended alternative of UV disinfection was selected
on the basis ofa life-cycle cost analysis and avoidance ofhazardous chemical handling.

Village of Akron Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements, Akron, NY
Project Engineer contributing to the $6 Million upgrade project at the Akron WWTF.
Upgrades include replacement of Rotating Biological Contactor units, installation of new screw
pumps, equalization tank mixers, anaerobic digester mixing system, two anaerobic digester
floating covers, and a new biogas handling system, as well as the addition of a UV disinfection
system. The project is funded with a 3O-year 0% interest loan through the New lbrk State
Environmental Facilities Corporation and a Water Quality Improvement Project grant.

H U N T TNGTNEERs r AR*irrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
17

Resumes



eade, PEatha L. M
Site/Civil Engineer

Civil Engineer Jonatha Meade's over thirteen years of site/civil engineering ar-rc1 lancl clevelopment experience is
demonslrated through her creative ancl detai]-oriented engagement. fonatha has been responsible for: the cornprehensive
site/civil design of various residential, retail, conrrnercizrl, and rnixed-use sites. IJer skills iiclude the production of awide
variety of docurnents, includirtg plan prepirratior.rs, conceptual designs, perrnitting and construction documents.

]onatha's areas of specialization include the following: site ciesign, stornlvater rnantlgc.rnenI design and gradirrg, SWPPP
design, utility clesign, land subclivision, and permitting.

Seleeted Proiect Experience
Education
Urrion College, Scher, ectad,v, NY,
BS, Cir.il Engineering, 1996

Professional
Registration
Prolessional llngineer
Nert' \brk, #089809, 201 I
Nelv ]ersey, #24GE04840400,
2010

Affiliations
Arnerican Sociely of Civil
F.ngineering, Mernher.

Continuing! Educatlon
Rochester Engineering Society
Annual Seminars (2013-present)

Cooper Plains Long Acres Wastelvater System Sewer District Extension, Town of
Ern'in, NY
Civil and design engineer fol sanitary pump stations associated r.r'ith a proposed mr,u.ricipal
wastewatcf collcction systcrn to scrvice the Torvrr of Etrvin. Pr"ojcct consistcd of thc installation
of approxirnately 30,000 linear leet of new system piping, creation ol'lbur new puntp stations
and associatecl other appurter.rances. (lornpletion ofall design iactols associated rvith punrp
statiol-ls fot'ptoltcr transl'er of r.vastc to wastcwater facility lor trcatlitclt. Wrotc ald creatccl
complex Engineer's Report lor project sttmmarizing new municipal system including gravity
ar.rd force r.r.rain piping systelns and pr,rn-rp station elesign, as required by the NYSDEC lor
technical revien'and systern irpprroval. Report also included SWPPP sectior.r for irnplerner.rtation
oferosion control featurcs during project construction.

Wastewater Sewer Systcm and Wastewater Treatment Plant, Town of Woodhull,
NY
Civil and design engineer for sanitary pump stations associated with a proposed mr.uricipal
wastewater collection systcrn to scrvice the'Ibwn of Wooclhull. Project consisted of the
installation of approxirnately 25,000 linear: feet oi'ne'lv systenr piping, installation of twenty-
eight eflluent pump tanks (in replace o1 eristing septic tanks/systerns), crealion ol'fttur new
pump stations and associated otl'rel appurtellances. Completion of all dcsign factors associatecl
with pr"rmp stations for proper transfer of waste to proposed wastewater facility fbr treatment.
Wrote and crcated complex Er-rgii-reer'',s Report for pr:oject summalizing ncrv municipal svstern
inclucling glavity and lorcc rnain piping systenrs pul'np sLation design ancl sequence batch
reactor for proposed waste'h'atcr treatnlent facility design, as required by the NYSDEC for
tcchnic:il reviov and system approval. Rcpolt also inclucled SWPPP section for-implenrentation
of erosion control leartures during projcct constlnction.

Genesee County ]ail Projcct, Smrt Architects & Engineers, Town of Batavia, NY
Civil L)esign Project Manager for the site development associated ivith a stand-alone 116,840 sf
Jail lacility ou a currently undevelopeci 16-acre propefty. Includecl site evaluation, SEQR revierv,
aud creation of dcsign devclopmcnt plans for construction estimatir-rg and regulatorv reviews.
Specialty approvals includc'cl archacological invesligation, rvetland investigation, sitc access
through existing County builcling shared drir,ewa)', and possible u'ater main dedication to the
'lbn'n. Challenging design required extensive coordintrtion betlveen 1brvn, Cor.rnty, Genesee
County Jail Conr.nittee, NYS Commission on Corrections, and multiple design consultants.
Multiple approvals will be lequired, including lbr.t'n Site Plan Revietv and l-and Separation,
Ton'n \Vatcr/Sanitaly Scwcr Sclvicc Conncc[ion Pcrmits including l]ack lrlow Pr*'cntcr (llFlr)
and Industr.ial Usc Permit, NYSI{PO No Impact, NYSDOT Utilit)'/Driveu,ay Connections,
NYSDEC SPDES Pcn.uit ancl San Servcr Extcnsion, NYSDOII lvater and back flow prcvcrltcr.
Project expected to continue through construction docnments ancl bidcling in the Fall of 2021 .

H U NlT rNGr Ntiius r A r{crrr.r11(i'r's rsu RV.yoRs
18

Resutnes



PEEenedlct Wolflin$n
Civil Engineer

Ben \4rolfling, PII is a project engineer wltose sevelt )/ears of experience in water, wasten'ater, and environmental
engineering oll-ers HUNT's clierrts thecompelling corrbination olthoughtful experience and state-cif-tl.re-art design
solutions; nrost recctrtly burnishecl by his being ar.vrrrded his PII in 2021 . Ben'.s skills incluclc cleveloping clrawings ior design
ar.rd constructior.r,_experience witl.r w.itiug speii{ications, preparing bids, ancl revier,ving submittals. He possessls first-haricl
ittspecticxr knorv-hor,g including construction procedures and managing contractor teirms. Ilen'.s succes.s with federal, state,
and lo.cally funded project highlights his personal dedication to clierits; frrornpt, eflrcient, and adept at completing projects
according to plans, he excels at working u'ithin budgets and timelines.

' Seleeted Project Experience
Education
University a{ BulTalo, Bu{lalo, NY,
BS, Cii.il Engineering, 2015

Professional
Registration
Prot'essional Enginecr,
Nerr Yort, NY #I03891, 2021

Skills
D e s i p t Exp er tise: Environnrental
Revieu,s; lvlunicipal
Infrastructure Design ; Site
Design; Projecl. Management;
Btdding & Specifications; SIVPPP
Preparation & Compliance
Inspection, Estimating; Proposals

SoJittare: AutoCAD Civil 3D;
\{atcrGLMS; HydroCAD;
PlanGrid; Info\{ater Pro;
InfoS\{iMM; Nervforma

City of Salamanca Water Systern Lnprovelnent Study, Salamanca, NY
Thc City o1'Salarlatrca's watcr systcnr has rnultiplc notc<l clc{rciencics, and thc Iloald of Public
Utilities (llPU) desired a preliminary engineering report (PIJR) lor improvcments in thc
water system. Ben devcloped the PIIR usiug inforr.nation {ron site visits and an analysis of the
existing water systent, along rvith inrrestigation into the Seneca Nat'ion of Indians watel systeln
to detertnine connectivity and demands on the Salirmanca system. I{e also created ii water
rnodel of the existing systern usine the InfolVater pl'ogram and modelled proposed altemate
improvements lor the PIIR.

Village of Canisteo, Water System lmprovements, Canisteo, NY
Ben provided desigr.r and revierv <lf cngineering plans for a water nrain replacemcnt project.
This CDBG luncled project it.rcludeci it.uprovet.uents to the existing \,vater stolage tank. Plaris
Ittr cleveloped for the ievee, stream, ancl railroad crossings. IIe coorclinated with NYSDIIC lbr
revierv aucl approval of ploject plans for the foint Applir:ation perrrrit.

This work was contpletetl beJbre Ben joined tlrc IIIJNT team.

North l{armony (T), Water District No. I Map, Plan, & Report, North Ilarmony, NY
Prelirnirrary r,"ater modelir-rg and uelv watcr system clesigrr in the Town of North l{armony, NY
Dcsigr.red several iterations ol'water system layout inclucling locations lcrr a 0.75 MG tank anrl
3 dilferent potential phasing options depending on funding available to tlie Tor,vn. Deliverables
includecl the Map, Plan, and report ancl plelirninar'1' cost estimates for all three phases of the
project, project estimatcs lor the entire project -$19 million.'lhe project was cxpaudccl to show
the potcntial for ne'n, lvater districts surrounding Chautauclua Lake.

Town <lf Torrey, Water District No. l, Torrey, NY
Water rr-rodeling and de sign of nelv n'ater systern for the -Iorvn of 'forrey in Yates County', \Iy.
Included coorclination n'itlr thc l)EC (strcan:r crossing lcport and environmcntal analysis), DOII
(water systern), DOT' (highway n'ork and road crossir.rg permit), Norlcrlk Southern Railn-racl (five
crossir.tg permits), and Yirtes Cour.rty lor approvals. Designed the rvater system and the meter
vault, along with prclformiug hydrant flow tcsts and obse rving soil borings lor railroacl crossings,
ar.rcl plepared specilicartions and bidding docurnents ancl coordinated with the {lnding agency
for fir.ral approvals (USDA Rural l)eveloprnent).

Town of York, Retsof Sewer Improvements, York, NY
Design and developrnent of'a neq' sepalirtcd stor-m and sanitary sewer to replace the ontclated
combincd sctvcr system. Project incluclccl a survc)/ and inspection of residcnccs in the cun'ent
se'wer district to detenline viability of design optior.rs and to assess the condition of the cxisting
itrfrastrticture. Research into existing systern and coordination with the local higllvay ancl selt'er
cleparttncnt rvas performecl to crerrte thc rnost elhcicnl. design for the new s),stem.

H UNlT rrvcrNr,r.ris rAr{(ir r r r,(.'r's rsu^vr-.yor{s
19

Resumes



Andrew E. Kinsleyn PE
Transp ortation Engineer/ADA D esign

Andrerv Kinsley is a lead HUNT Tiansportation designer, who since 2017 has n'<lrked on projects ir-r Central NY, the
Southern Tier, Westen-r NY and Northem PA. A Clarkson University gracluate, l.ris engineering background inclucles civil
audstructural.engineering, and he has designe_d numerous bridge replacement and rehabilitation projects, both federally
funded, pass.-through projects and locally funded projects. Ile has also performed designs for culverti, trallic signals,
reta.ining rvalls, and roadways, andhas been responsible fbr gaining approval o1'nurnerous NYSDOT highway viork perrnit
applications. Andrew is well-versed in structure design, highway design, NYSDOT and PennDOT Stanilards and Design
Procedures, d9,s]gn approval docutnentation work, utility coordination, ancl environnrental permitting. He has a rvicle iange
ol'computer skills, inclucling MicroStation and bridge superstructure ancl substructure design software.

Education
Clarkson Universitv, P<ltsdam,
NY, BS, Civil Engineering-
Structural, 20I 7

Afliliations
Arlerican Institute r:f Steel

Seleeted Project Experience
City of Canandaigua Department of Public 'Works, North Bloomfield Road
Reconstruction, Canandaigua, NY
Moving from its base at Buftalo Street and F.A. Baker Park antl continuing 0.6 miles up to the
Civic Ccnter complex and YMCA at North Street, North Bloonrfield Road is an "cuergetic"
continuation of the City's vibrancy and trail/pedestrian/biking network. HUN'l"s eflorts
aim at a dramatic r:edesign o1'the aesthetics and bicycle and pedestrian access of the corridor.
As lead designer of this projcct, Anily providcd a de sign for a comprehensive reimagirriug
of the profiie, drainage, and sanitary infrastructure along the corridor. Vertical curve sight
distances were improved to increase safety along the corridor. A new sidervalk rvas added
on the north side of the road to directly connect the newly constructed YMCA to F.A. Bal<er
Park. l he road itself r.t'as reconstructed and widened to allow for safer bicycle access along the
corridor. A netv closed drainage system and sanitar-y se\4'er systen.l was constructed, and watel
main u'as replaced in select locations whcre there were changes in profile.

Monroe County, Pedestrian Safety Action PIan, Various Towns & Villages, Monroe
CountyNY
I-IUNT was retained by Monroe County to assist thern with the preliininary/final design,
bidding, and constructinn phase services for the Pedestrian Salcty Action Plan which would
improve the safety lor pedestrians at approximately 250 signalized and unsigr-raiized
intersections, as rvell as several mid-block crossings throughout numerous tor,t'ns and villages
withirt the County. Duling prelin-rinary design each location was visited to evaluate the current
condition of signage anrl pavernent markings.

Empire Access Perm 75 Projects
Lead Designer of thcse Perm75 Application Subrnissions to NYSDOT. Responsible for
developing required drawings for sr.rbmission, as rvell as coordination of required supporting
doeumentation for sulrrn ission.

2021 BridgeNY Applications - Responsible for completing and submitting BridgeNY
Applications for the lollowing structures:
Diamond Valley Rd over Neiger Hollolv Creek, Town olTioga, Tioga County
Fitzpatrick Hill Rd over a Trii.r. to Catharine Creek, Town of Montour, Schuyler Cour.rty
Railrottd Aye over Dean Creek, 'Ibwn of Spencer, 

-fioga County
Ilulbcrt Hollorv Rr/ over a Trib. to Michigan Creek, Tolvn of Spencer, Tioga County
rA/ashbunr Rd over: Seelyto'rvn Creek, Ton'n of Spencer, Tioga County
CR3l over Vancampen Cleek, Village of Friendship, Allegany Cour.rty
Kirby Street over Newton Creek, Village o{'Bainbridge, Che nango County

H U N T TNGTNEF.T{s r A *cr{r rr..c's r suRV.yoRs 20
Resumes



Ilomas Klaseus, PE
S enio r Water/\Mastewater Engineer

Torlas Klaseus, P.E. elevates HUNTis consultant toolbox by ofering nearly 50 years of experience in cleveloping ancl
Inanaging drinking water, ground lvater proteclior.r, and environmental health Lrr()gralrs and projects. His perspective is
bol.h inforr.r-red ancl broaciened by executing a wicle variety of project budgets, trainir-rg ancl st4rervisir.rg personnel, ancl
preparing grant appiications irnd contracts.

$elected Froiect Experienee
Education
Univcrsitl' ol^ Minne sota, Inslitute
ol Teclinologl' - Nlinneapolis,
I4innesota; Bachelor of Civil
Engineering Degree, 1 970

Professional
Reglistration
Prof'essi on al Engi nccr,
Ner.r York State, 19ti2
059000#

Affiliations
1999 - 2017 Steuben County
\"Vater Qual i ty Coordirrating
Conmittee

1999 - 2017 Steulren County
Local Ernergency Planning
Comrnittee

1999 -2017 Southern Tier
Central Planning Physical
Resources r\dvisory Conrmittee

1999 - 2017 Schul.ler County
\Vater Qualitl' Coordinating
Commitlee

1999 - 2017 Schuyler Counly
Local Er.nergency Plarrning
Con'rmittee

1999,20171t9U1 - i9lt5
New 1'ork State Conlerence of
Environmental Heaith Directors

Senior Water/\4rastewater Engineer: HUNT-EAS
Conclucts QA/QC on engineering plans, speci{ications, ancl reports for public water
atrd onsite sewage systen projects. Provicles technical support and rnentoring for
junior engineers on sound engineering practices and on NYSDOII/NYSDEC/
USEPA lnws, regulations, aud err.rerging issues pertaining to pr lic water and orrsite
sewage systems. Performs various marketing services fior HUNT and consults rvith
municipalitics regartlir.rg regulatory conrpliance ancl oper:ational issues pertaining to
their public water systerns.
Selected project design assistance and QA/QC:. 'Ibwn of Campbell new r,vell, treatment llcility, and distribution system

extensior-r
. Village of Carristeo major distributictn system upgrades
. Village of Interlalien raw watcr intake/pumping station ancl r.nicrofiltraticln/

GAC treatment facility
. Village of Waverly major clistribution system upgrades
. 'Ibwn of Erwin new well ancl treatutent facility
. Village of Endicott 1,4-dioxane and iron/mallganese well water treatment

study and new well investigation

District Director: Nelv York State Departrnent of Health, Hornell District Office
(retired 12/28/17)
Developed ancl tnanageti environnrental healtli prograrns/activitics in Steuben and Schuyler
countie s to ensrirc cornpliance rvith the Public Health l,an, and Ncw York State Sanitary Code.
Pr.ovided progranr clirection and supcrvision to OlTice stafl (6 9 full-tirne staffancl 6-9 part-
time sta{l). Conductcd inspections/invcstigations, revicwed engir.recring pians, and prcpared
rcports/clocuments on public rvater systerns, r'ealty subdivisions, campgrounds, public bathing
facilities, and onsite servage treiltnrent systenrs at pernritted ltrcilities and at residences requiring
alternative systems. Worked with the City of iIornell, the NYSDO'l', and their consulting
engineer on the design, construclion, and start-up o1'a GAC plant to tleat VOCs in the City's
wells. As part of that effolt, pclforrneci cooldinirteti plan rcviewlapprovzrl with the NYSDOfI
ccntral ofllcc, conductecl in progress and conrpleted rvorhs inspcctions pr:iol to plant startup,
trr.rd addressed public/media cor.]cerns legarding the project. Condr,rcted outhrcak/cleath/
selious injury irrvestigations aucl obtained coLrection of public health irazalds. Plovideel
tt'chnical assistance, training, and genelal rnlonnation to interested parties on District
plograrnsi activities.

H U f\ T tN c r N r 11 rt s r,\ r( c r i r' ri (-'r's r s u r{v !ry ( ) ris
21

Resumes



Senior Sanitary Engineer: New York State Department of Health. Hornell District
Office
Directed the public water supply and realty subdivision programs in the Hornell District
Office. Supervised public water supply staff, including a senior sanitarian, junior engineeq
and keyboard specialist. Conducted inspections/investigations, reviewed engineering plans,
and prepared reports/documents on public water systerns, realty subdivisions, campgrounds,
public bathing facilities, and onsite sewage treatment systems at perrnitted facilities and at
residences requiring alternative systems. Revjewed and approved proposed facility plans
for public water supplies, realty subdivisions, public bathing facilities, mobile home parks,
campgrounds, swimming pools, and sewage treatment systems at permitted facilities and at
residences requiring alternative treatment systems. Provided project management services and
technical assistance to selected public water suppliers via NYSDOH's "Self-Help" program in
a twenty-county western New York region. The program predominantly helped smaller, rural
communities to build needed and affordable water projects.

Senior Project Manager, P.E.: LaBella Associates. P.C. -- Environmental Division,
Rochester, New York
Managed Phase II Hazardous Waste Site investigations at trvo IHWDS-listed landfills. Activities
included contracI negotiations, health and safety plan development, geophysical surveys,
monitoring'well installations, environrnental media sampling, analytical data interpretation,
and report preparatior-r. Prepared an RI/FS work plan for an IHWDS-listed industrial site,
participated in contract negotiations and managed the project. In addition to remedial
investigation and feasibility study activities, the workplan included a citizen's participation
plan, quality control program plan, health and safety plan, and an interim rernedial rneasure
pilot studf illvolving dual-phase extraction. Prepared a drinking water market analysis based
on regulatory driving forces. Initiated and rnanaged the developrnent/expansion of drir-rking
water-related services provided by the firm. business development, proposal preparation and
presentation, contract negotiations, and project management. Prepared and submitted an
industrial air emission permit application to the New York State Department of Environmental
Conservation.

Special Services Unit Supervisor/Principal Engineer; Minnesota Department of
Health - Minneapolis, Minnesota
Developed and managed special prograrns and projects related to drinking water/ground
water protection. Programs included wellhead protection, lead contamination control, and
Iandfill/dumpsite monitoring. Projects included pesticide, volatile organic chemical, lead,
leaking monitoring well, and obstructed abandoned well studies. Provided program direction
and supervision to Unit staff(13) - hired and trained staff, Developed grant applications and
contracts and managed budgets for Unit programs and projects. Prepared reports covering
Unit projects and programs and made presentations to the United States Environmental
Protection Agency, the Minnesota State Legislation, and numerous other organizations.
Represented the Department on committees and at meetings, conferences, hearings, and media
events involving various water-related activities.

HU NTtNGTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs rsuRVF.yoRs
22

Resumes



Harley Gonnelly
Construction Insp ector

Harley Connelly recently retired as the Water Systern Operator for the Village of lVatkins GIen. In this capacitl', he
supervised stafl, oversaw quality control of new construction and rchabilitations, nanaged the system's SCADA Systcrn,
tltrnaged the water filtration treatlnent plant and numerous purnp stations, oversaw the operation of 5 water storage tanks,
and performed budgeting and reporting to the \riilage and NTS Department of Health.

His quality control activities included rvorking as the head inspector/observer on capital projects ancl rehabilitation or
repair contracts, overseeing cor.rsultant inspection activities, and reviewing desigrr documents and equiprnenl-/material
submissions.

Selected Froiect Experience

Corni ng Community Collcge,
New lbrk State Fire Academl',
Montour Falls, NY, Haz-Mat I,
II, III
Corning Community College,
Corning, N{ Basic Computers,
D Water License

Western Water Authoriry Buffalo,
Ng IIA Water Filtration'License

GommunitY
lnvolveme-nt

SUEZ Water Owego-Nichols Inc., West Main Street Waterrnain Replacement and
Observation, Owego, NY
Construction lnspector to monitor maintenance protection of trafic ancl to document any
incidcnccs such as accidcnts, injur:ies, or couplaints. Ilarley recordcrl quantities, document as-

built, and assisting in jobs scheduling. I{e also participated in problem solving.

SUEZ Water Owego-Nichols, W. River Rd.Watermain Replacernent, Nichols, NY
Constructiou observation of the installation of the repltrcement of a lvatermain on West River
Rd. As Cor.rstructiou lnspector, Harley monitored the rnaintenance protection of traffic in
addition to docutnenting incidences like accidents, injuries, or cornplaints. I-Ie also recorded
quantities, docunent as-built, assisted with job scheduling, and assisted with project problem
solving.

Village of Watkins Glen, Madison Ave (NYS Route 14) Watermain Replacement &
Observation, Watkins Glen, NY
I{arley monitored maintenance protection of tralfic, <iocument incideirts - be it accidents,
injuries, or complaints. He also recorded quantities, docurnent as built, and assisted in jobs
scheduling and ptoblem solving.

Village of Watkins Glen,I&I hnprovements, Watldns Glen NY (Directly employed
by Village of Watkins Glen)
Harley Connelly provi<1ed daily construction oversight for a large wastewater collect system
improvement project inchiding over 10,000 feet of cure in place lining and sanitary sewer pipe
replacement along with rcplacer.nent or rehabilitation of ovcr 60 sanitary sewcr nranholes.
Rehabilitation of the sanitary selver manholes included chemical injection, cementitious lining
and epoxy lining in strategic locations. Flarley u'as responsible for providing field oi.'ersight
and direction antl evaluated completed work, change order requested, requests for infornrtrtion,
etc. This proiect inch.rded regulatory compliance and funding assistance from USDA RD.

Davis House Sewer Rehabilitation, I&I Improvements, Town of Owego, New York
Harley completed design and construction oversight for various wasterqater improvc'ments
pointed torvard I&l reductions. These included nearly 7,500 feet ofcured-in-place lining of
the sirnitary sewer along with replacerner.rt of nearly 36 sanitary sewer manholes. lhis project
included regulatory compliance and funding assistance from tl're NYSDEC WQIP.

Tou'n of Dix,'Water CDBG Extension Study, Watkins Glen, NY
'Ile Watkins Glen / Coi-ning KOA Resolt n'as looking into municipal u,ater and rvastewater
sources, whilc the Torvr.r of Dix 'r /as looking to loop thcir u,atcr system to reduce disinfection
byproclucts. Flunt was contracted to clo a stud,v on the feasibility of such a extension. I{ttrley
was part ofthe team that assessed u'ell and septlc systerls for residents along the route.

H U l\T tNGrNIr:r{s r A r{crrrrrr.cl's r su*\iryoRs
23

Resumes



SUSAN KING POPE, PE-LS

OBJECTIVE Presiclent ofKing Consulting !ngineers & Land Surveying, PC, providing civil engineerilg,
limited environmental engineering and land survey services.

SKILLS & ABILIT'ES Susan's experience in civil engineering and surveying ofTers recommendations/alternatives
early in the project development servicing the client's needs boti for the future as well as

for the immediate needs.

SELECTED PROJECT

EXPERIENCE

Staff Engineer

Employee of the City of Plano Texas in Engineering Depaftment. Resllonsibilities include
reviewing private projects for compliance with City standards, City utility master plan,

preparing review letters of approval/ or disapproval with commellts" On-site inspection of
private projects for compliance with approved drawings, coordination with other
depaftments.

Professional Engineer

Project Manager/ Engineer providing civil engineering services to the private sector for
land developntenf site planning, conrmercial and industrial permitting. Services also

include engineering and sutvey services to other professionals as a sub-consultant.

Permit applications for NYSDEC part 360, NYSDEC SPDES stormr.vater permits, Cor.rnty

health department permits, County health department reports, County/ State public water
supply perrnits, and forensic engineering for insurance cases.

EDUCATION Clarkson College ofTechnology, Potsdarn, NY L979

BS, Civil and Environmental Engineering
Alfred Ag & Tech State College, Alfred, NY 1976

AAS, Land Survey'l'echnology

PROFFSSIONAL

REGISTRATION

Professional Engineer New York
Licensed Land Surveyor New York
Registered Civil Engineet California
Registered Land Surveyot Califolnia

LEADERSHIP Chair of the Citizens Adrrisory Council, City of Lockport

Emeritus Board Menrber New York State Board of Engineering and Land Surveying

REFERENCES FURNISHED UPON REQUEST

24



Markets Served:
. K-i2 Education
. College/University
. Municipalities
. Healthcare

. State Agencies

. Industrial

. Private Development

. Architecture

. Asbestos/Lead Abatement Design

. Aviation Management Planning,

Architecture & Engineering

. Building Condition Surveys

. Civil/Site Engineering

. Clerk-of-the-Work Services

. Construction Administration

. Control Systems & Automation

. Cost Estimating & Cost Control

. Electrical Engineering

. EnergyStudies

. Facilities Management Information
Systems

. Funding Solicitation & Administration

. Furniture, Fixture & Equipment
Selection

. Interior Design

. Investigative Engineering

. LandSurveying

. Landscape Architecture

. Municipal Engineering

. MechanicalEngineering

. Planning

. Programming

. Project Management

. Regulatory & Agency Approvals

. Storm Drainage Design

. Structural Design

. Technology Design & Planning

. Transportation

. Water & Wastewater

. Wetland Delineation

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARCH.rEcrs r suRVEyoRs
25 HUNT Services



Lockport Master Plan lntroduction:
As noted throughout this proposal, HUNT's ability to take a Master Plan
project from 'ttudy to funding" is a signature feature of our efforts on behalf of
municipal and academic clients. The full-service engineering and architecture
analytical perspectives we bring to bear on infrastructure and building analysis
continues through the engagement of our grant-writing team. A holistic
approach to asset management studies has left us a recent roster of master plan
projects, including most recently $5-$10M work at Campbell, Canisteo, and
Waverly, and a litany of others highlighted by Bloomfield, Candor, Castille,
Naples, Olean, and Romulus, (Beysnf, that, we h,slcome ),our contacting our
references listed sep arately below.)

Proiect Examples
Village of Wellsville, Water System Improvements, NY
HUNT was retained to design improvements to the water system for the Village of
Wellsville in the southern part of Allegany County.

The Phase I & II Water Storage Tank construction project consists of two (2) 2-million
gallon AWWA Dl l0 wire-wound concrete water storage tanks, thus removing the
existing open, in-ground, and steel tanks storage facilities from service and increasing the
total water storage for the Village to 4 million gallons. These new tanks were constructed
at the location of the existing facilities on property owned by the Village. Both tanks
have the same finish floor and overflow elevations. By constructing these tanks with an
overflow elevation equal to the existing 750,000-gallon steel-welded tank, no significant
increase in the operational pressure of the distribution system was observed, The first
2-million gallon tank was constructed adjacent to the 750,000-gallon steel-welded tank,
which was removed from service and demolished. The construction of this tank did not
affect water storage or water supply to the Village. Upon placing the first water storage
tank in service, the existing 3-million gallon open reservoir was removed from service
and demolished. The final cost for this project was $2.3 rnillion.

Village of Endicott, Watermain Extension and Village Interconnection, NY
The $69,075 project consisted of a water main extension along Route l7c from the United
Water Owego water system to the Town of Owego water system. New 8" ductile iron
water main was installed using conventional trenching methods (2,000 feet) as well as
valves, hydrants, and a precast concrete meter pit. HDPE water main was also installecl
using directional drilling methods for Route 17c crossing (75 feet).

HUNTtNGINEERs r ARcHrrEcrs rsuRvEyo*s
26

Relevant Experience



HUNT provided design, permit submission, bid documents and
construction services.

Town of Erwin, Municipal Water Study/New System,
Coopers Plains-Long Acres, NY
Residents within the Coopers Plains-Long Acres hamlet relied
upon individual groundwater wells for their water supply.
However, lack of separation between groundwater supply wells
and on-site septic system resulted in significant contamination of
said well.

HUNT initiated a study to investigate the extension of municipal
water to the CPLA hamlet, identified project costs per user and
obtained nearly $4,000,000 zero interest loans and $2,000,000 nr
grant funds from the New York Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund Loan Program.

The new CPLA water system consists of nearly 40,000 LF of
ductile iron water rnain, a new re-chlorination station and a new
500,000 gallon water storage facility.

HUNT also provided construction inspection services through
the completion of the project.

Contact: Rita McCarthy, Town Manager, 607.962.7874

Village of Waverly, Water System Study/Improvements, NIY

Hydraulic Modeling: The Vllage of Waverly hired HUNT
to develop a hydraulic rnodel of the Village's water system to
predict flow rates and pressures for different operational and
water demand situations. The model is an effective planning
tool for evaluating the irnpacts and potential benelits of
improvements to the water system, such as looping dead-end
watermains, installing a new groundwater supply, or replacing
undersized watermains.

New Production WelL The Village produces 375 million
gallons of potable rvater annually. Decreasing production
yields from the existing groundwater supplywells and the
unpredictable water quality of the existing surface water
reservoir are overcome by the Village's new groundwater
production well (Well No. 4). The groundwater withdrawn
at the new well house is chlorinated on-site and discharged
tol8-inch diameter ductile iron chlorine contact piping that
provides the necessary 30 minute retention time.

Water Storage and Tiansmission: The Village increased their
water storage capacities from 500,000-gallons to 1.8-million
gallons with a new water storage tank. The water storage
tank has an access drive as well as a re-chlorination building
necessary to maintain the appropriate let'els of chlorine within
the proposed water storage facility.

Additional improvements included upgrading existing
water transmission and distribution rnains along Ithaca Street
and across Cayuta Creek. Funded through USDA Rural
Development grant and loan, the project cost was $3,100,000.

H U NTTNcTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRVEyoRS
27

Relevant Experience



Village of ,S,avona, Water System Study/New Village Water
System, NY
Residents within the Village of Savona relied upon individual
groundwater supply wells to provide a potable water. However,
inadequate separation distance between the individual
groundwater supply lvells and the indMdual on-site septic
systems resulted in contamination of a significant number of
private groundrvater supply wells.

HUNT worked with the Village and the NYSDOH to document
existing couditions and develop a conceptual plan for the
provision of a new municipal water system.

This plan was instrumental in securing funding for the project
to develop two municipal groundwater supply wells, a water
distribution piping system, and a water storage facility.

HUNT successfully completed the engineering design to include
two 180 gallon per minute groundwater supplywells,40,000 L.F.
of ductile iron water distribution piping and a new 350,000 gallon
water storage facility.

HUNT completed the contract documents and engineering
drawings with multiple alternatives to ensure the lowest possible
construction costs for the client.

The project was cornpleted in 2008 and won a Platinum
Award from the New York chapter of the American Council of
Engineering Companies (ACEC).

Contact: Brian Scott, Mayor, 607.583.2124

Town of Owego, Water System Improvements, NY
A significant portion of the Town of Owegot water system was
constructed in the early 1960s. Marry of the existing welded
steel water storage facilities were vandalized and all tanks were
not recoated since the original installation. HUNT completed
a detailed water storage facility evaluation that assessed the
internal and external conditions of the reservoir and compared
the costs for rehabilitation versus replacement. The findings
were documented in a preliminary engineering report which
was utilized to secure low interest loans from the United States
Department of Agriculture Rural Development office.

Three of the six water storage facilities were earmarked for
replacement as a result ofdeflection ofthe tank floor, degradatiou
of the tank ring wall and loss of tank wall thickness. The existing
welded steel water tanks were replaced with precast, prestressed,
concrete wire-wound water storage tanks.

The other three were structurally sound and had many years of
useful life remaining. Therefore, the tanks were rehabilitated and
recoated. Rehabilitation included the addition of securityfencing
and fall prevention measures, while repainting involved removal
of existing lead paint, fill areas having significant corrosion,
repair damaged welds and repainting of the tank using NYSDOH
approved coatings.

Additional water system improvements included the replacement
of a below grade booster purnp station with a conventional
above grade booster pump station to clirninate confined space
requirements.

The final cost of the project was $3.182 million.

H U N T TNGTNEERS r A RcHrrEcrs r suRVF.yoRS
28

Relevant Experience



Village of NewarkValley, Water System Improvements, NY
HUNT cornpleted a comprehensive evaluation/study of the
Village of Newark Valley public water supply system including
two groundwater supply wells, 20+ miles of water distribution
piping and 400,000 gallon in-ground water reservoir.

HUNT identified several shortcomings in the Village's public
water system including high amount of unaccounted for water,
insufficient groundwater well pump controls, inadequate fire flows
throughout the Village, illegal out of Village water users, exposed
stream crossing piping, inadequate water storage volumes for fire
protection, and unsound water storage facility.

HUNT prepared a Preliminary Engineering Report which was
used to secure US[)A Rural Development grant and zero percent
loan funding to construct a new 500,000 gallon wire wound
concrete tank, replace or eliminate 18,000 LF ofundersized or
leaking water main, established SCADA Controls of the well
pumps and storage levels, provided new fire hydrants to allow
proper fire fighting opportunities, and improved the main trunk
supply into the heart of the Village Center.

The final cost ofthe project was $3,715,000 .

Contact: lames Tornatore, Mayor, 607,642. 8686

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRVEyo*.s
29

Relevant Experience



LII'UNTI site/civil team brings a depth of experience, and an attention to detail that will
I lbe evident in the development process and at the completion of your facility.

Site/Civil Servicesl
Site Planning

. Grading

. Drainage

. Parking Lot Layout

. swPPP (SPDES)

. Storm Water Mgmt. (SPDES)

. Erosion & Scdiment Controls

. Utility Layout

Studies/Reporting
. Water System Analysis
. Hydraulic Water Modeling
. Map, Plan & Report
. Sanitary Sewerllnflow & Infiltration

Studies
. Sewer Modeling
. Stormwater Pollution Prevention

Plans
. Funding Assistance

Water Infrastructure
. Groundwater Supply Design
. Disinfection &Water Quality

Treatment Design
. Water Booster Pump $tation Design
. Water Transmission & Distribution

Piping Design
. Water Storage Facility Design

Wastewater Infrastructure
. On-Site Wastewater Treatment &

Disposal Systems
. Sanitary Sewer Collection System

Design
. Wastewater Lift Station Design

Stormwater Infrastructure
. Stormwater Collection System Design
. Stormwater l)etention Facility Design

Transportation Services
. State & Interstate Highways
. Countl&TownRoads
. Urban Streets & Streetscapes
. Bridges
. Trafflc Studies
. Horizontal Curve Studies
. Construction Inspection
. Pedestrian & Bicycle Paths

H U N T TNGINEERs I ARCHrrEcrs i suRvEyo*.s
30

HUNT Services



Project Examples:
Town of Lansing, Municipal Wastewater System Study, NY
HUNT prepared a preliminary feasibility study to identi$r and evaluate a municipal wastewater
system for the core area ofthe Town oflansing. The focus ofthis studywas to develop
preliminaryproject costs estimates as well as projected estirnates of user costs (rates). The
information provided in this studywas also used to support an application for project funding.

The existing residences and businesses have septic systems, which creates a potential for
contamination. Due to the high ground water and the soil conditions, the septic systerns are
prone to failure and inefficient operation. In addition, the lack of a central sewer system is a
determent to commercial and higher density residential development.

As a part of the study, HUNT considered providing wastewater collection and treatment for
the central areas located along New York State Route 348 from approximately 1/3 of a mile
east of Auburn Road westerly to Myers Road and continuing weiterly along Myers Road to
Cayuga Lakc. The study evaluated three different collections systems and four diferent types
of wastewater treatment facilities. Preliminary costs estimate and short term (15 years) assets
management evaluation were prepared for all alternatives.

Contact: Edward Lavigne, Town Supervisor, 607.5i3.8896

Town of Woodhull, Municipal Wastewater System Study, NY
HUNT prepared a preliminary feasibility study to identify and evaluate a municipal wastewater
system for the Town of Woodhull area. The focus was to develop preliminary project costs
estimates as rvell as projected eslimates of user costs (rates), and to support an application for
project ftinding.

Existing residences and businesses have septic systems, which creates a potential for
contamination. Due to the high ground water and the soil conditions, the septic systems are
prone to failure and inefficient operation. This is a particular concern in the proposed study
area, where lot sizes are often small, resulting in inadequate separation distances between wells
and septic systems.

HUNT considered providing wastewater collection and treatment for all areas within the base
study area, which contains those properties located within the original "Village of Woodhull"
limits. There were three alternatives considered. The first was the installation of gravity sewer
mains with a conventional package treatment plant. The second lvas the replacement of the
existing septic tanks with grinder pumps, installing smaller force mains and the installation of
a conventional package treatment plant. The third was leaving the indMduals septic tanks in
place and installing ejector pumps, force rnains and the installation of a sand filter treatment
system or a small MBR plant. Preliminary costs estimates and 15-year assets management
evaluations were prepared for all three options.

Contact: Scott Grant, Town Supervisor, 607.458.5178

H U N T TNGINEER' r ARCrrrrEcrs r su*vEyoRs
31

Relevant Experience



, ':.i_

lEru

Town of Springwater, Municipal Wastewater System Study,
NIY
Jhe Town, after receiving concems from the Department of
Corrservatior.r and the City of Rochestcr over faulty operations of its
new wastewater wetland system, hired HUNT to investigate if the
system *'etlands treatment was constructed in conformance with the
approved design. Upon finding tl.re wetland rvas not coustructed to
design, HtrNT negotiated with the bond companyto reconstrnct the
r,r'etlands, and perfornred construction administration and inspection
for the Town.

After completion of the wetland treatment system, the discharge
was not meeting the limits for ammonia during the warm lveather
rnonths. The wetland system was experiencing approxin.rately one-
hallof the design flows during the summer months. These reduced
flow rates lvere stressing the microorganisrns rvithin the i.vetland cells.

Consequently, IJUNT worked u'ith a wetlands specialist to finc-tnne
the process by installing a recirculation system to fill the cells faster
and thereby reducing the stress or1 the microorganisms. As a result,
the discharge is rneeting peribrmance limits.

In additi<ln to the recirculation system, HUNT designed
modifications to the existing t'acility to allow for an overflow
should the existing mechanical or electrical systeln faiis. Other
improvetnents to the existing wastewater treatmellt plant include
emergency generator, inflow meter, efRnent meter, and ultravioiet
disinfection.

Contact: Jhn Crowley, Systenr Operatot 585.519.1823

Schuyler County, Municipal Wastewater Study, Village of
Odessa, NY
Within the Mllage olOdessa, the existing residences and businesses
have septic systerns, which create a potential for contamination.
A trout streams dissect the village and the potential risk of
contamination from the septic systems of adjacent homes and
businesses is high. In addition, the lack of a centrai sewer systern
is a deterrnent to commercial and higher density residential
developrnent.

Therefore, the Village Board retained the services of HUNT
to investigate the econornic feasibilify ofconstructing a public
lvastelvater collection and treatment system. The focus of this study
was to develop prelirninary project costs estimates as well as projected
estimates of user costs (rates). The inforrnation provided in this study
is also intended to support an application for project funding.

As a part of the study, HUNT evaluated tu'o scenarios. One was
providing wastelvater collection and treatment for the central
business area and the other was providing service to the entire
Village. The study evaluated three different collections system and
four different tlpes of wastewater treatment facilities. Prcliminary
costs estimate and short term (15 years) asset management
evaluation were prepared for al1 alternatives.

C o nt act : Tunotlry O' I I ear n, C o u rtty Adr nin strator, 6 0 7. 5 3 5. B I 0 6

i

t

ilr
I

.*

I

H U N T tNGINr.IrRs r AR.rr'rF..rs r su^vryoRs
32

Relevant Experience



SCOPED, MunicipalWastewater Study, Village of Burdett,
l{Y
HUNT prepared a preliminary feasibility study to identifu and
evaluate a municipal wastewater system for the Village of Burdett.
The focus of this study was to develop preliminary project costs
estimates as well as projected estimates of user costs (rates). The
information provided in this study is also intended to support an
application for project funding.

The existing residences and businesses have septic systems, which
ueates a potential for contamination. Due to the high ground water,
shallow bedrock and the soil conditions, the septic systems ure prone
to failure and inelficient operation. ln addition, the lack ofa central
sewer system is a detennent to commercial and higher density
residential development.

As a part of the study, HUNT evaluated two scenarios. One was
providing wastewater collection and treatment for the central
business area and the other was providing service to the entire
Village. The studyevaluated three different collections systems and
evaluated four different types ofwastewater treatment facilities.
Preliminary costs estimate and short term (15 years) assets

management evaluation were prepared for all alternatives.

Contact: Judy McKinney Cherry, SCOPED 607,535.4341

SCOPED, Wastewater Infrastructure Study, Schuyler
County,NY
HUNT was retained in November, 2002, by the Schuyler Counly
Partnership for Economic Development (SCOPED) to conduct a

county-wide study of the inter-municipal water and wastewater
infrastructure. The project included a series of exploratorypublic
meetings with each of the towns to gather data on areas of growth,
and their perceived needs for improved water and wastewater
systems.

HTINT produced a development strategy for business and economic
development based on a review ofwater plans and an inventory of
existing systems. ln addition, HUNT worked with SCOPED and
the local municipalities to identiff potential sites for economic and
business growth and development throughout Schuyler County.

Contact: ludy McKinney Cherry, SCOPEA 607.535.4341

H U N T TNcTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRVDyoRs
33

Relevant Experience



Tioga County, Municipal Sewer Collaboration Study, NY
HUNT was hired to conduct an assessment study of three municipal
sewer systems in Tioga County, NY, containing four wastewater
treatment plants, and to identiff potential areas ofcollaboration
and/or shared services among the multiple sewer systems along the
Susquehamra River.

HUNT conducted interviews with the plant operators and collected
data on the wastewater treatment facilities, then prepared an
economic evaluation of combining the wastewater treatment plants
in the Owego area as well as collective ways to reduce costs. The most
promising cost reduction was a shared biosolids (sludge) composting
facility. Currently, all three municipalities haul their sludge for land
application. Two municipalities pay a "tipping" fee to dispose of the
sludge fur land application, and would save substantially by utilizing
a shared composting facility. HUNT prepared an O&M estimate and
an evaluation of operating a shared composting facilify.

HTINT prepared a Preliminary Engineering Report that evaluated
the installation of a sanitary sewer collection system within the
Village of Nichols and pumping the wastewater to the existing
Lounsberry wastewater treatment plant. The report included the
evaluation of three types of sanitary sewer collection systems -
gravity, grinder pumps, or effluent pumps.

Included in the overall study was an asset lnanagement plan for the
four wastewater treatment plants. HUNT obtained information and
replacement costs for the equipment and facilities at each treatment
plant and prepared plans based on EPAs recommended design life for
the equipment.

HUNT also investigated alternate sources of funding.

Contact: Elaine Jardine, 607,687. 8257

H U NTtNcTNEERS r ARcHrrEcrs r suRVEyoRs
34

Relevant Experience



TJUNf has been performing Asset Managenent Evaluations of critical municipal
I Iiufrastructure for many years, rvith each project streamlined lor the particular r-reeds
of our clients. At the core ofa rneaningful Asset Managernent Evaluation are the following
elements: protect public health and safery, provide necissary public service to citizer,s,
and maintain a self-sustaining business-like rinit. I{UNT strongly beiieves in deveioping
a thorough understanding ofihe system, conducting comprehe"n'sive data-gathering'to "
formulate fact-driven information on the condition of the existing facilitiea, including:
study original design documents, conduct field investigation aud bbservation, and
discussions with facilities marlager, adrninistrators, and maintenance staff.

Some of the starrdard elernents of HUNT's Asset Management Evaluations
includc:

1. Current State of Assets
. Interviews with current and past staff
. Inspections (Field verication, building condition assessments, televising,

monitoring)

2.Inventory & Documentation of Assets
. Short-lived Assets
. Long-tenn Assets
. Equipment
. Personnel

3. LevelofService:
. Municipal Services
. RegulatoryCorrpliance
. Protection ofPublic Flealth
. Ratepayer Expectation

4. Criticalitv
. Likelihodd of Failure
. Consequence ofFailure

5. Life-Cycle Costing
. Historic
. Prerrentative Maintenance
. Municipal Financial Health
. Rate Setting and Fiscal Planning

6. Capital Lnprovement Plan

7. LongTerm Funding Strategy

H U l\ TtNGrNIrrrRs r ARCrrrrEcrs r su*vDyoRs 35
HUNT Services



'f) ain revitalizes landscaped areas, washes away grime, and recharges groundwater
I\aquifers. However, if nol properly accounted for in the developinent of neighbor-
hoods and cities, it can have equally detrirnental effects such as erosion, floodifg, and
pollution of streams and lakes. In particular, improperly designed storm conveyance
systems (sewers, culverts, and channels) may ultimalelyrendel portions of properties
unusable.

Often, system design turns on the sizing and capacity of the sewer pipes. In certain situa-
tions, this can lead to conveyance installations that do not account for inlet and manhole
junctions. 

-To summarize a related hydraulic engineering principle, storm water under-
goes significant tyrbulelce entering and exiting pipes, cf,anging direction and slope, and
the confluence ofrunofffrom other pipes.

When not accounted for, the depth of water can increase to such an extent that it can
begin to flood out of the top of an inlet or rnanhole - even with properly sized pipes.

Utilizing "energy and hydraulic" gradeJine analyses, HUNT calculates the effects of these
Iosses in order to evaluate and design conveyance systems. Placing iulets ofiline, install-
ing flap-gates at key points, and eliminating acute, directional changes will yield massive
improvements at a relatively minor cost.

H U NTtNGTNEERs rARcHrrEcrs r suRVEyoRs
i6

HUNT Services



L]'UNT'S familiarity with funding mechanisms sterns from over 45 years of helping
I Imunicipal, academic, and private clients. HUNT has assisted 32 communities
secure approximately $50 million in funding through 2l grant programs from 2018-
2020. These grants leveraged $105 million in community infrastructure improvements in
the region.

Many communities have projects that are eligible for state and fe<leral funding but lack
the technical expertise and resources to identify potential funding sources, develop
comprehensive grant proposals, and manage project administration. The grant consulting
services offered by HUNT enable essential community projects to be realized, improving
the quality oflife for residents.

Our Grant Consulting Process
Gommunicatlon Planning: HUNT is committed to our clients and invests time in understanding local budgets, five-year plans, wish
lists, and priority projects.

Research: HUNT is well-versed in investigating the availability of grant funds to offset the costs incurred by developing and upgrading
facilities. We will match projects to the best funding opportunities

Applieatlon Development: HUNT works closely with clients to develop competitive funding applications, including coordination
with regulatory and funding agencies, development of multi-year plans and preliminary engineering reports, cost-effective budgets,
documentation ofneed and support, and clear articulation ofobjectives.

Glant Admlnistratlon: Our team will help to execute the contract, aid in environmental reviews, administer grant funds, develop
project reporting, and support the awardee with community meetings.

Project Completion: HUNT provides project oversight, certification of project cornpletion, and grant contract closeout support.

H U N T TNcTNEER' r ARcHrrEcrs I suRvEyoRs
37 HUNT Services



2O2O Proiects Awarded

Broadband
$14,467,878 --

$oa
O1

MunicipalWater
$2,580,000

Municipal
Wastewater

$ 1,310,000

Community
Development

$35,000

I*.wms

Samplin$ of Grants Awarded
$2,974,094 Town of Erwin Wastewater Treatment Nutrient Removal & Disinfection
Mandated by both NYS DEC disinfection and Chesapeake Bay Total Maximum Daily Load nutrient reduction reqnirements, HUNT
implemented wastewater treatment plant nutrient removal, disinfection improvements, and the replacement of outfall piping.

$30,000 Town ofBath Lake Salubria and Kanona Sewer Study
This project involved the investigation of a municipal wastewater service extension to areas that are currently dependent on private on-
site septic systems; these septic systems are suspected of impacting surface and drinking water quality,

$320,000 Village of Bath Liberty Street Target Area Renovation Project
Building on the success of the Technical Assistance grant, HUNT targeted rehabilitation
and streetscape improvements to create a vibrant mixed-use historic center.

$2,349,832 Village of Candor Water Infrastructure Improvement Plan
Prioritized water system improvements were selected to establish a reliable and
uninterruptable water supply, to protect the health and safety of the consumer and to
achieve compiiance with regulatory standards:

$50,000 Village of Millport Water System Study
This project included the evaluation ofexisting water system supply production and
distribution, storage, metering systems, water system modeling, secondary water supply
for compliance with state standards, health and safety, and operational solvency.

$11,000,000 to date for Livingston County Fiber-to-the-Premises
This public-private partnership will result in a 400-mile fiber optic network bringing
broadband to the County. Upon completion, over 5,500 households, farms, and
businesses that are currently underserved or unserved will receive I Gigabit-level internet
service.

Grant Funds Leveraged

H U N T TNcINEERs r ARcrrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
38

HUNT Services



TJUNT's familiarity with funding mechanisms stems from over 40 years of helping
I Imunicipal, academic, and private clients. Our immersion in the process has even
included creating our own "shovel-ready site funding program" for Industrial Develop-
ment Agencies (IDAs) within upstate New York.

Between 2015 and 2018, HUNT has played a role in assisting municipal clients in the
Southern Tier, Finger Lakes, and Western NY areas capture well over $24M in water,
community, and wastewater grants. Available for both studies and implementation, those
monies have been secured from a variety ofState and Federal sources including:

. NYSDEC Water Quality Improvement Act

. NYS !,nvironmental Facility Corporation

. Water Infrastructure Improvement Act (WIIA)

. Community Development Block Grant (CDBG)

. NYS Empire State Development

. Department of State Local Government Efficiency

. NYS Energy Research & Development Authority (NYSERDA)

. NYS Main Street

. United States Department of Agriculture Rural Development

. Appalachian Regional Commission

. NYS Bridge Program

. NYSDOT Transportation Enhancement Program

. NYSDOT Safe Route to School

. State & Municipal (SAM) Facilities Program

. Consolidated Funding Act (CFA)

. FEMA Disaster & Non-Disaster Relief Funds

Funding & Institutional knowledge are inseparable, and our ability to help our clients
depends on the following: anticipating their needs and laying the groundwork for
those programs with the appropriate agencies; developing multi-year plans and agency
compliant preliminary engineering reports to serve as basis for prioritization and
planning; and executing the often-complex funding applications and agreements.

Meanwhile, our grant writers, planners and team leaders systematically track the
wide breadth of funding sources available to our clients to determine all potential
opportunities. Even with the best laid plans, the turnaround on funding applications can
often be quite demanding, and again, our preparedness is an enormous asset. HUNT's
funding assistance doesnt stop with the application. Our team will help to execute the
contract, aid in environmental reviews, administer grant funds, and support the project
through completion.

H U N T tNcTNEERS r ARCHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRS
39

Grants, Funding & Institutional Knowledge



\ [ forking closely with client's financial team or advisors, HUNT will navigate issues concerning project aidability, related cycles of
V Y maxirnum incidental and cost allowances, and capitalizing on retiring debt service. Creative solutions prepared by HUNT have

allowed our clients to leverage their local share and capital reserve funds to the rnaximum degree possible.

NYS SFC Infrastructure Improvement Act: NYSEFC provides grant funding to assist municipalities in funding rvater quality
infrastructure. A drinking water project may be eligible for a WIIA grant of up to the lesser of 60%o of total eligible costs after deducting
other grant funds awarded for the project, or $3 million. A clean water project rnay be eligible for up to the lesser oI'25% of total eligible
costs, or $5 miilion. HUNT has assisted communities with this program and its predecessor, the NYS \ rater Grants.

NYS EFC Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loan: The Clean Water State Revolving fund provides interest-free or lorv-interest rate
financing tbr wastewater and water quality iurprovement projects to municipalities throughout Nelv York State. EFC provides both
short and long-term linancing at zero or low interest. Applications are received on a continuous basis.

USDA Rural Development: Over fifty linancial assistance programs for a variety of rural applications are offered through USDA RD,
including: Rural Business Development, Community Facilities, lVater & Waste Disposal Loans & Grants. HUNT has experience with
the regional and state offices and can help facilitate the detailed planning and complex docunrent administration. Eligibility for RI)
funds vary from community to corxmunity, and HUNTT team can help clients determine their status.

FEMA Disaster and Non-Disaster Grants: Prepaledness program funding to enhance the capacity of state, local, and tribal agencies to
prevent, respond to, recover frorn, and rnitigate all hazards. HUNT has experience helping communities auticipate and prevent future
hazards, and respond effectively when disaster strikes.

Additional Funding Sources: HUNT is
weli-r'ersed in investigating the availability
ofgrant funds to offset the costs incurred
by developing and upgrading facilities.
HUNTk commitrnent goes beyond any
funding application, we are cornmitted
to our clients, our communjties, and the
future. We know that lvhat makes a great
colnpany are the values and mission itt
built upon. We always say'rve're here for
the long haul'and we lnean it. We will stick
by you, support you, and work with you
until the end. Dont believe us? Why dont
you join us and find out.

H U NT"NGTNDERs r ARCrrrrEcrs I sur{\rEyoRs
40

Grants, Funding & Institutional Knowledge



MEP Services:
Mechanical Engineering

. HVAC Systems

. Industrial Fume/Material Handling
Exhaust Systems

. Hospital/Laboratory HVAC Systerns

. Energy Use Evaluation

. Automatic Temperature Control &
Energy Management Systems Design

. Commercial Kitchen Exhaust

. Clean Rooms

. Hydronic Heating/Cooling Systems

. Steam Piping Systems

. Chilled Water Systems

. Chemical Process & Manufacturing
Systems

. Sanitary/Aseptic Process Systerns,
Equipment, & Piping

Plumbing Engineering
. Medical Gas/Compressed Air Systems
. Domestic Water Heating/Piping

Systems
. Sanitary Drain/Waste/Vent Systems
. Storm Water Drainage Systems
. Fuel Oil Piping Systems
. Fire Protection

Electrical Engineering
. FDA Process Validation IQ/OQ/PQ
. SQFCode
. Primary/Secondary Power

Distribution
. Interior/ExteriorLighting
. Smoke/Fire Protection Systems
. Emergency Power Systems
. Security Systems

H U N T TNGTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
41

HUNT Services



LJUNT provides the expeltise needed to support community problern solving and
I Irational decision-rnaking. We rvork through a transparent and engaging process to
bring locally-devised initiatives to fruition.

Our team of LEED-accredited planners, landscape architects and engineers recognizes that
planning requires a cotnpreheusive approach addressing all dirnensions ofan issue.

We draw on the planning, quantitative, and design skills of our team and partlters l"o
provide flexible and feasible recornrnendations.

Whether the project is a stand-alone initiative or a iarger desigu project that our: plar.rning
services will enhance, HUNT will work to provide a beneficial outcome.

Planning Services:
. Brownfield Reuse Strategies
. Comprehensive Planning
. Design Guidelines
. I)owntorvn Revitalization
. Environmental Plannirrg
. Landscape Master Planning
. Grant Writing
. Master Planning

. Public Outreach

. Smart Growth Strategies &
Sustainability

. Transportation Planning

. Viewshed Analysis & Regulations

. Waterfront Planning

. Wayfinding & Signage

. Zoning Regulations

I
H U l\ T rNGINEEr.s r A R*rrT'!.c's r su*v F:yo*s

42
HUNT Services



Location: Big Flats, NY

Gontact: Shawn Crater
Water Superintendent

607.562.8443

fhe Town of Big Flats was comprised of
I multiple water districts having varying

rates, system configurations and system
conditions. While water rates were not
raised for nearly ten ( 1 0) years, basic sys-
tem functions were not being performed
and long term system solveniy was of
utmost concern for the Town Board and
water department.

HUNT was secured [o conduct a compre-
hensive water system study to investigate
consolidation of the various water districts,
complete a through asset managernent
plan and develop a an affordable rate
structure. The comprehensive study and
asset management plan investigated not
only infrastructure condition, but also all
other necessary components including
personnel, software, computers, etc.

HUNT developed an asset management
plan that integrated needed shorf term and
long term improvements and identified a
rate structure rneant to maintain system
solvency for the following20year period.
This plan also identified a five (5) year
improvement plan, necessary preventative
maintenance procedures designed to en-
sure the longest useful life ofsystem assets
and simple asset management spreadsheet
that the Town could utilize and update
annually.

HUNT helped Town of Big Flats with a
grant application and has received funding
from the NYS Economic Development
Corporation.

HUNT Serviees:
. Water System Study
. Asset/Management Plan

F#*"a

H U N T tNcTNEERs r ARcHrr'crs r suRvEyoRs
43

Relevant Experience



Location: Coopers Plains, NY

Gontactl Rita McCarthy
Town Manager

607.962.7874

J) esidents within the Coopers Plains-
Illong Acres hamlet relied uf on individ-
ual groundwater wells for their water sup-
ply. However, lack of separation between
groundwater supply wells and on-site septic
system resulted in significarrt contamina-
tion of said well.

HUNT initiated a study to investigate the
extension of municipal vyater to the CPLA
hamlet, identified projecl. costs per user and
obtained nearly $4,000,000 zero interest
loans and $2,000,000 in grant funds from
the New York Drinking Water State Revolv-
ing Fund Loan Program.

The nelv CPLA water system con.sists of
nearly 40,000 LF of ductile iron water main,
a new re-chlorination station and a new
500,000 gallon water storage facility and
monitor metering facilities.

HUNT also provided construction inspec-
tion services through the completion of the
project.

HUNT $ervices:
. Investigated Municipal Water
. Construction Inspections

H U N T tNGTNEERs r ARC'rrEcrs r sunvEyoRs
44

Relevant Experience



Don Reed

Authority Chairman
814.228.3366

Location: Genesee, PA

Gontact:

l-the Genesee Township Municipal
I Authority was award'ed a Conimunity

Development Block Grant (CDBG) to
develop a second well supply for their
existing water system. The site chosen was
outside of the village at their existing well/
spring house. The project" required test well
developn'rent and evaluation followed by
completion of the production well.

HUNT coordinated with Pennsfvania
Department of Environrnental Protection
(PA DEP) for modifications to the existing
public water supply permit as well as
working closely with the Genesee Township

HUNT Services:
. Site/Civil
. Structural

Municipal Authority and SEDA-COG to
administer the grant funds for the project.

The selected improvements for
Phase I were removal of a spring source
that was under the influence of surface
water as well as improving fire protection
and increasing water pressure throughout
the community. Construction on this
project was completed in 2019.

. MEP

. Survey

H U N T tNcTNEERs r ARcHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
45

Relevant Experience



Locatlonr Mansfield, PA

Gontact: Christopher McGann
Borough Manager

570.662.23t5

Mtil::*i,H.#ff ::Hfi i:*x:
along East Main Street was in poor
condition and in need ofreplacernent.
They further determined that the storm
sewer was formerly a combined sanitary
sewer, and there were questions as to
whether all sanitary sewer laterals had
been fully disconnected. As a result, the
Borough hired HUNT to design a storm
sewer system to replace the existing storm
sewer piping in its entirety while verifring
the configuration and soundness ofall
previously reconfigured sanitary sewer
laterals. Construction began in October
2015 and consisted of replacement of

HUNT Services:
. Storm Sewer System l)esign Plan
. Replacement
. Installation

approximately 2,200 lineal feet of the
system and installation of additional
stormwater drainage structures to provide
adequate stormwater drainage along East
Main Street. The project was substantially
complete in December 2015.

. Adequate Stormwater Drainage

H U N T 
"NGTNEER' 

I ARCHrrEcrs r suRvEyoRs
46

Relevant Experience



Location: Salamanca, NY

Gontactl TracyChamberlain
Clerk

7t6.945.4620

rlahe Citv of Salamanca owns and
I operat'es a public water system

serving approximately 6, I 50 people
using 2,687 service connections in the
City of Salamanca, the Township of
Salamanca, and the Township of Great
Valley. In 2019, the Cify completed
emergency rehabilitation of half of the
primary well field located on Water
Street. Improvements are needed in the
second half of the well field as well as in
other system components throughout
the service-area. The City received a
Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) to pursue a water system study
to determine what improvements were
needed.

HUNT parl.nered with the City to
perform data gathering and to assist
them in gaining a full understanding of
the system and its operation. That study
included a complete system modeling
in InfoSWMM, an evaluation of the

HUNT Services:
. Water System Study
. Water System Modeling
. Flood Protection Evaluation

flood protection for existing wells, and
a thorough asset inventory. HUNT also
evaluated the possible installation of a
new gas line to the water treatment plant,
a downgrade to a 480-volt system, a new
treatment plant building at a developed
(but unused) groundwater well source, and
the replacement of pumps, controls, and
standby generator.

The HUNT team also provided a report
phase and an environmental review The
report phase includes the development
of improvement alternatives for the
Preliminary Engineering Report and an
Environmental Report.

The Prelirninary Engineering Report
prioritizes recommendations and will act
as a road map on how best to successfully
implement the recommendations and
assis,t the Ciry in applying for project
funding.

. Preliminary Engineering Report

. Environmental Report

H U N T"NGTNEERS r ARcHrrEcrs r suRVDyoRs
47

Relevant Experience



Location: Savona, NY

Contact: Brian Scott
Mayor

607.583.2124

f) esidents within the Village of Savona
I\relied upon incliviclual gioundwater
supply wells to provide a potable rvater
supply. I-Iowever, inadequate separation
distance between the individual
groundwater supply wells and the
individual on-site septic systerns resulted
in contamination of a significant number
of private groundwater suppiy wells.

HUNT worked with the Village and the
NYSDOH to document existing conditions
and develop a conceptual plan for the
provision of a new municipal water
system.

This plan was instrumental in securing
funding for the project to develop two
rnunicipal groundwater supply wells, a
water distribution piping system, and a
water storage facility. Grants utiiized for

HUNT Services:
. Develop a Conceptual Plan
. Designing a New Municipal Water

System

this project included funds from the New
York Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund Loan Prograrn and the USDA Rurai
Development Prograrn.

HUNT successfully completed the engi-
neering design to include two 180 gailon
per minute groundwater supply wells,
40,000 L.F. of ductiie iron lvater distribu-
tion piping and a nerv 350,000 gallon water
storage facility.

HUNT completed the contract documents
and engineering drawings with rnultiple
all.ernativcs to ensure the lowesl. possible
construction costs for the client.

The project was completed in 2008 and
won a Platinum Award from the New
York chapter of the American Council of
Engineering Companies (ACEC) in 2010.

H U N T tNGTNEuRs r ARcrrrECrs r sunvEyoRS
48

Relevant Experience



Loeation:

Gontact:

Naples, NY

Brian Schenk
Mayor

585.374.2435

fhe residents of the Village of Naples
I have experienced failing septic

systems, leading to high costs for system
replacement, and logistical issues meeting
updated codes and regulations for new
systems. Additionally, the failing systems
may be contributing to contamination o[
Naples Creek, a critical trout spawning
stream, along with other waterways
within the area. Therefore, the Village
obtained the services of HUNT, to develop
a preliminary sanitary sewer system and
wastewater treatment plant design to
service the residents and the businesses of
the community.

HUNT prepared a preliminary design
for approximately four miles of sanitary
sewer collection system, and the

HUNT Services:
. Grant Solicitation

' Sanitary Sewer Design

wastewater treatment facility. The systen'r
serves 184 users, including residential
and commercial use types, totaling
approximately 50,000 gallons per day of
wastewater produced. The wastewater
treatment plant design required
consideration for nutrient removal,
including both nitrogen and phosphorus,
to meet stringent effluent limits required
for discharge into the Canandaigua Lake
Watershed. The preliminary design was
completed and presented to the Village
Board in the Fall of 2017. The final
system design was approved in 2018
with the intent ofregulatory approval
and construction to follow. Project was
completed in2020.

. Wastewater Treatment Plan Design

. Construction Services

H U N T tN.INEER' r ARcHrrEcrs r su*vEyoRs
49

Relevant Experience



l

Location: Tioga County, NY

Gontast: Elaine |ardine
607.687.8257

fJUNT was hired to conduct an assess-
I Iment study of three municipal sewer
systems in Tioga County, NY, containing
four wastewater treatment plants, and to
identi$r potential areas of collaboration
and/or shared services amorlg the rrulti-
ple sewer systems along the Susquehanna
River.

HUNT conducted interviews with the
plant operators and collected data on
the wastewater treatment facilities, then
prepared an economic evaluation of com-
bining the wastewater treatment plants in
the Owego area as well as collective ways
to reduce costs. The most promising cost
reduction was a shared biosolids (sludge)
composting facility. Currently, all three
municipalities haul their sludge for land
application. Two pay a "tipping" fce to dis-
pose of the sludge on the land application,
and would save substantially by utilizing
HUNT Services:

. Assessment Study

. Economic Evaluation

. Preliminary Engineering Report

a shared cornposting facility. HUNT pre-
pared an O&M estimate and an evaluation
of operating a shared composting facility.

HUNT prepared a Preliminary Engineer-
ing ReporL thaL evaluated the installation
ofa sanitary sewer collection system
within the Village of Nichols and pumping
the wastewater to the existing Lounsberry
wastewater treatment plant. The report
included the evaluation ofthree types of
sanitary sewer collection systems - gravity,
grinder pumps, or effluent pumps.

Included in the overall study was an assets
management plan for the four wastewa-
ter treatment plants. IIUNT obtained
information and replacement costs for the
equipment and facilities at each treatment
plant and prepared plans based on EPAs
recommended design life for the equip-
ment.

HUN L*crNEER' r ARcHrrEcrs r sur{vEyoRs
50

Relevant Experience



King Consultitrg E rgitreets & Land Smrcying, FC
3284 Walden Avenue

Depew, NY 1 4043 Tel 716.677.5464

Project Histories

Coopers Plains Long Acres Sewer District Expansion and Woodbine Water Tower Replacement,
Erwin, NY

Provided construction inspection for a 6 million dollar capital improvement project, assisted in
the design of wastewater treatment and collection systems, water tower construction, and quality
control observation and reporting for sewer district expansions in Erwin, NY inclusive of storm
drainage, paving and curbing, working within the requirements of New York State Environmental
Facilities Corporation and NYSDEC Water Quality Improvement Project Program.

Spaulding Lake Wastewater Treatment Plant, Clarence, NY

Spaulding Lake \MWTP is located in an upscale community outside of Buffalo. It was
originally designed and built in the 90's for treatment up to 100,000 gallons per day. Several
years of poor performance, and many modifications over the years had resulted in an Order on
Consent. KCE provided studies, evaluations, research, reports, and design services for waste
water upgrades and improvements to existing plant. Work included analysis of historical plant
performance, ana$sis of plant flow, treatrnent process removal efficiencies, solutions for
addressing problem areas, developing construction drawings and specifications, and services
during construction. Challenges included compliance with NYS DEC consent order timeline,
keeping plant in operation while work is being performed, locating experienced contractors to
perform improvements, ordering and expediting parts from Germany, suppliers, manufacturers.
Two pieces of equiprnent required substantial tirne for delivery; to expedite direct contact with
the manufacturer revealed stock available which were oversized for the application, but resulted
in immediate availability and reduced cost. The meter was oversized, and resulted in little
fluctuation in flow rates thru the plant, this was replaced with the corrected meter size for
reading accurate flows of the plant.

Quany Hills MHP, Akron, NY

Original services were for on-site private sewage disposal system rehabilitation and/or
replacement. Studies and review of site revealed, domestic water distribution leaks, poorly
drained storm water system and maintenance of storm system, several manholes, pump station,
and infrastructure covers in need of repair and improvement to be elevated above grade. KCE
provided research, monitoring and evaluation for addressing water line leaks, maintenance work
on storm sewer, and minor work on the psds.

51



r Failed bed was taken off line, zabel filter manifold installed, along with flout to
distribute flows equally among remaining beds with proper dosing.

r Permitting from NYSDEC for discharge to wetlands
r Cumently working with client and DEC for improvements to on-site pond.

CAO Rafi Green Masten Resource Center, Buffalo, NY

Provided programmatic environmental review for the NY Main Street Better Buffalo
Project. Prepared environmental compliance checklist, program description forms and
supporting documentation for the environmental review on seven (7) sites in the
Fillmore- Masten district.
Projects were funded by the Housing Trust Fund Corporation, under the New York
State Main Street, Buffalo Main Streets Initiative. Compliance applies to all sites in
the development process, including both public and private entities.

Rock Oak Estates West, Clarence, NY

Provided planning and design services for water, roadways, vertical & horizontal
alignments, san sewer system, storm sewer, retention/detention sizing, storm water
management, preparation of engineers' reports,RPZ application & services during
construction for 250 unit Mobile Home Park, 5 miles of road and infrastructure.

Gables on the Green, Clarence, NY

Boundary survey, topo survey, concept planning, preliminary water/sewer/storm/road
design, preparation of DEIS

USA Niagara, NYSDOT Old Falls St. Reconstruction, Niagara Falls, NY
. Provided topographic survey, prirnary control, and mapping services

Woodrow Wilson School, Sloan, NY; JFX Middle/High School, Cheektowaga, NY; Theodore
Roosevelt Elementary School, Cheektowaga, NY

Stake line and grade for new building construction, including major building corners
and offsets; provide drawings of staked areas

LaSalle Parkway, Niagara Falls, NY

. Completed drainage analysis and evaluation of existing conditions.
r Designed new storm system including retention/detention pond for proposed

improvements.

a

a

a

a

a

Golder Associates, Amherst, NY

52



r Provide certified quality assurance (C Q A ) land surveying for construction offive new
hazardous waste sub cells, and capping a Z5-acre existing landfill at the CWM, Model
city, NY facilfty.

r Locate and map monitoring well locations at various sites in Western New York.
o Provide C.Q.A. land surveying for construction of double-walled leachate transport line,

Chemical Waste Management, Inc. Model City, NY

Perform monthly topographic surveys of active landfill cells, calculate volumetric
consumption, and provide record drawings of each measurement. Provide all new
location and historical tabulation for monitoring well system.
Maintain three-dirnensional monument control networks for the 700+ acre facility.

Northeast Buffalo Parkway, Phase 1, Buffalo, NY

Provided construction stakeout for improvements, including berms and bike path,
verified horizontal control, established secondary vertical control

a

a

a

53



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U N T rNGrNrnRs r ARCH''crs r suRV.yoRs
54



Lockport lntroduetion
The City of Lockport's water distribution and sanitary/storrn ser.+'er coilection systems,
each consisting of over 105 miles of piping, includes aging infrastructure and multiple
sections with unique challenges. Water distribution system challenges consist of
nrostly original iron and asbe stos cement piping, large unaccounted/loss, r-nultiple
unmetered services, excessive breaks, and lack of tank storage for fire flow and high flow
regulation. The sanitary sewer collection system faces challenges including original aging
infrastructure, significant inflow & infiltration (I&I), as well as rapid elevation changes
and deep infrastructure leading to foreseeable construction challenges. Storrn sewer
challenges are similar to the sanitary with an estimated 707o combined sanitary/storm
sewers, original infrastructure, and disconnected drainage structures.

A comprehensive Water and Sewer Master Infrastructure Plan is required to divide
and conquer specific issues within the systems while maintaining a cohesive plan with
the objective of long-term planning for the systems as a whole. Hunt Engineers offers
this proposal to work in close partnership with the City to develop this master plan.
Our tearn-based approach will incorporate the City's long-term vision while providing
guidance for ftrnding opportunities, planning, and er-rgineering knowledge for individual
prioritized projects.

PROJECT APPROACH
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM STUDY
The City of Lockport is faced with a water distribution that consists of infrastructure
well over 100 years old throughout the majority of the City. Many services, such as
municipal buildings, the City pool, multiple flushing events throughout the year, and fire
department training multiple times per week, are unmetered and account for a portion of
the unaccounted for water loss. Although the City purportedly rnaintains good pressures
in the distribution system, the areas at the PRVs are set to the minimum allorved 20
psi prior to reaching the northern ends ofthe Citywith pressures nearly exceeding 150
psi such as at the Cityt WWTP. The prior storage tank has been decommissioned for
years, and therefore, the City relies on pumps and the clearwell to provide adequate fire
protection and high flow volurnes. other issues seen within the system are asbestos
concrete pipes, multiple areas with large amounts of water breaks, water laws that require
a service owner to be responsible for all work frorn the connection point (i.e. at the
nrain), estimated unaccounted-for/lost water (and lost revenues) of an estimate d70%o....
.....continuerl.....

H U ll T TNGTNE'Rs r ARCI{rrrcrs r suRVEyoRs
55



.....limited valving on the transtnission main along Transit Road and throughout the systern, and lack of rnetering within the system.

Execution of the Water System Infrastructure Plan assessment, prioritized project recommendations based on data analysis, testing,
and modeling, review of the Cityt water policies and regulations, and potential funding opportunities and solicitation will require close
coordination between the HUNT team, the City Engineering office, and the Ciry DPW. This close working relationship will greatly
benefit the development of a vision for the entire system and then prioritize individual projects to lay out a timeline to secure funding
and tackle these issues. Execution and completion of this study requires strong hydrologic understanding, technical aud operatioual
skills to assess water system needs, thorough understanding of current and future regulatory requirements, and experience with water
system financing, all while having sufficient capacity to complete the tasks on time and within budget. The HUNT tearn possesses the
needed skill sets and availability to successfully carry out the study. The team proposed the following aggressive scope of professional
services to assist the City of Lockport to successfully meet their goals.

Preliminary Data Gathering and Research

Prior to the initial kick-offmeeting with the City and the HUNT team, HUNT shall review initial information provided by the City.
This initial review will proactively guide the discussion of the kick-offmeeting, The information to be reviewed shall consist of any
water record mapping, GIS data, DOH annual inspection reports, and initial billing records of the lowest and highest consumption
users.

Kick OffMeeting, Data Gathering & Project Planning
A kick-offmeeting will be held between HUNT and key individuals representing the City to establish shared goals and expectations
for the overall Master Water Infrastructure Plan. The meeting will be designed to introduce the project team, establish lines of
communication, review project scope and schedule, complete the preliminary data review findings , discuss and docurnent the Cily's
expectations, and collaboratively develop a definition of success with respect to this project. HUNT shall develop a meeting agenda
and submit it to attendees prior to the meeting along with follow up meeting minutes.

At the kick-off meeting, HUNT shall develop a list of additional needed data (i.e., material standardization resolutions, any available
engineering drarvings ofpast projects in the project area, etc.), discuss implications ofthe lead and copper rule with respect to the water
infrastructure plan improvenrent project(s) and the need to document water systern materials, etc. We will also establish data gathering
assistance that is available to the HUNT team by the City (i.e. potential hydrant flow testing, c-factor testing, etc.).

In-Depth Data Gathering, Needs Assessment, and Analysis
Following the kick-off meeting and after the scope is fully agreed upon, HUNT shall complete a more in-depth evaluation of the
mapping of the existing watermain to develop high-level priority areas within the City to investigate with greater efforts. These efforts
will take on a variefy of forms including visiting the water system to become more familiar with it throughout the City, an extensive
review of the GIS data and all available files from the City Water Department (mapping, water production records, billing records,
NYSDOH annual inspection reports, etc.), and conduct field evaluations with City staf to confirm record mapping and GIS data.
HUNT plans on spending ample time in the field with qualified individuals to inspect the various systern components and assess their
condition.

H U N T TNcINnERS r ARcr"rrrncrs r suRvryoRs
56

Project Approach



Other data gathering will include items such as the aforementioned hydrant flow testing, leak detection investigation (assuming the
City can assist, otherwise HUNT can solicit a subcoutractor for this work at an added cost), selective meter placements and/or pressure
logging (to identify residual pressures during norrnal workiug conditions and in critical areas during simulated fire flow conditions),
and establishing and sending a water district-wide questionnaire u'ith pointed questions to the consumers regarding items such as
pressure issues, aesthetic issues (odor, taste, color), etc. to continue establish areas ofgreater focus.

HUNT will solicit input from the local health department to review and discuss previous findings in past annual inspections and
anticipated future regulatory changes. HUNT will evaluate the water system components with respect to regulatory compliance
(compliance with Recommended Standards for Water Works, i.e. Ten States Standards) including configuration and capacity. Capacity
evaluations will be made on the clearwell storage (and lack of tankage), and the distribution system. Review of the City's water laws
and regulations will be conducted at this same time. This regulatory compliance inspection and assessment shall be documented and
results included in the pending Master Infrastructure Plan.

Gathered information (such as pipe diameters, pipe interior conditions (based upon age), ground elevations, etc.) will be analyzed and
incorporated into an updated GIS system that is compatible with the City's capabilities, and the information will be utilized create a
hydraulic water model in InfoWater. The model shall be capable of identifying flows and pressures throughout various operational
conditions. The ability to provide adequate flows and pressures will directly impact greater water system improvement and pipe
replacements,

HUNT will work with the City to complete an asset management plan to identify needs based upon age, component conditions,
regulatory compliance, etc. This evaluation shall extend to all water distribution system components and review its functionality, age,
expected useful life, and ability to meet current regulatory requirements. The evaluation shall include storage, residuals in the system,
valves, piping, pumps, prvt, hydrants, and meters. The existing City meters are aged and likely unable to record adequate water usage
for accurate billing purposes. Therefore, it is important to conduct a complete water system distribution asset management plan
for identification of annual savings necessary to maintain short lived assets and ensure future system solvency. This annual savings
requirement shall be reviewed with respect to the current budget and rate structure.

Follow Up Meetings and Project Management
HUNT shall continuously involve the City throughout the process at regular intervals to ensure the project success laid out in the kick-
offmeeting is upheld and that it stays on iruck wiih the defined scheduli. Any updates to the schedule 6r timing of analysis will be
easily addressed through constant communication.

Analysis, Recommendations, and Costs
HUNT shall review all gathered data, questionnaire, in-field work, and modeling information to provide the City with recommended
projects and provide cost estimates to prioritize projects based on f,easibility and long-term planning. These recommendations may
consist of a master meter replacement program, selective water main replacements, valving, etc. These recommended improvements
will be outline in a timetable with the City to best ap,proach potential funding/grant opportunities to assist the City in proactively
upgrading its water infrastructure instead ofreacting to the issues at hand.

H U NTTNcTNEDRs rARcHrrEcrs rsuRvryoRs
57 Lockport Project Approach



The final report to the City r,r'ill be a culmination of the collaboration between the HUNT team and the City throughout the entirety
of the project. The report will be in a format that best outiines the Master Infrastructure Plan with the overall assessments of the
system, recommended improvements through the asset management and short- and long-term efforts and costs, review and suggest if
necessary improvements to the water policies and regulations, potential funding sources with a schedule outline for applying for these
opportunities, and detailed irnplementation plan for achieving the City's goals.

Quality Control
HUNT's emphasis on quality control is intrinsic to our daily operations. The success of our firm is directly related to the quality and
accuracy of our documents, and we take careful measures to ensure that our product meets, and rnore often exceeds, quality standards.
During the design process, our documents are scrutinized during a series of ongoing coordination reviews by the design team. The
multi-discipline nature of HUNT project teams provides ample opportunity for documents to be reviewed by colleagues as the project
progresses through the phases of design. Frequent meetings with the client provides another forum for review of the construction
documents. HUNT has an outstanding reputation for the quality of our construction documents. This thorough documentation will
result in reduced cost to the City.

SANITARY SEWER COLTECTION SYSTEM STUDY
The City of Lockport's sanitary sewer collection system cornprises of 70o/o combined sanitary and stonn sewers and includes ten ( 10)
active, permitted combined sewer overflow (CSO) discharges. The system faces unique challenges including original stone interceptors
that are susceptible to erosive undermining resulting in sinkholes, significant inflow and infiltration (I&I) from the combined system
leading to increased operations and maintenance (O&M) costs at the WWTF and throughout the system, as well as rapid elevation
changes throughout the system causing overflowing manholes and generally deep ir.rfrastructure with drop rnanholes of over 30 feet
leading to fbreseeable construction challenges.

Tfie Sewer Master Infrastructure Plan will be developed with the objective of being proactive towards achieving long-term solutions.
This includes a timeline for pursuing grant and funding opportunities; therefore, the efforts in developing the Master Plans will be able
to be used towards the grant and funding application process.

HUNT will work with the City to develop a vision for the entire system and then prioritize individual projects to lay out a timeline to
secure funding and tackle these issues. HUNT will perform a preliminary analysis of existing information prior to the kick-offmeeting
with the City to then develop high-level priorities. Following this kick-offmeeting and additional information gathering, Hunt will
perform an extensive analysis of existing information including record information, GIS models, flow data, televised sewer sections,
sewer policy and regulations, etc. Hunt will then provide recommendations for prioritized projects and engineering solutions including
cost estimates, timelines for securing funding and developing the design, regulatory, bidding, and construction schedules. This process
will be a team-based approach with continued communication with the City as well as an iterative process to arrive at optimal solutions
both in terms of feasibility and Iong-term planning solutions.

Preliminary Data Gathering and Research
Prior to the initial kick-offmeeting with the City and the HUNT team, HUNT shail review initial information provided by the City.
This initial review will proactively guide the discussion of the kick-offmeeting. The information to be reviewed shall consist of any
record mapping, GIS data, overflow discharge records, sewer policy, and initial billing records of the lowest and highest consumption
users, etc.

Kick-offMeeting & Data Gathering
At this kick offmeeting, the City and HUNT will discuss the challenges facecl with the sanitary sewer and storm sewer systems
including past efforts, knolvn sources of I&I, and problem areas. The discussions will include expectations with respect to addressing
these concerns. Additionally, HUNT will collect any ftrrther data that is relevant to complete a thorough analysis.

It is important to utilize the grant funding efficiently in order to identi$' sources of I&I, review potential solutions, identify a viable
capital irnprovement plan. The objective is to identify feasible projects to address challenges and then lay out a timeline with the
funding cycles to accomplish these agreed upon solutions.

H U N T tNcrNDnRs r ARcHrrrcrs r suRVEyoRs
58

Lockport Proj ect Approach



HUNT shall establish and review, in detail, the investigative approach, schedule, report development process, and review period. The
goal in developing these deliverables is to utilize these efforts for future grant or funding opportunities.

In-Depth Data Gathering, Analysis, and Modelling
Following the comprehensive data collection, HUNT will perform an extensive desktop review including an update to the GIS system
based on record information and City staffknowledge. Modelling eforts as outlined below will be used to identify potential projects.

I . HUNT will obtain all existing GIS mapping as a geodatabase (or other acceptable file flpe) from the City of L,ockport. GIS staff at
HUNT will u-tilize the geodatabase, to develop a sanitary sewer model in InfoSWMM, an ATcGIS based sewer modeling program.
2. HUNT will obtain all existing water usage data for the users within the sewer district. Generally, we request two to tfiiee years of
quarter$ usage reports to establish trends in usage and develop an appropriate average daily flow rate based on use fype (i.e., single-
family residential, multi-family, cornmercial). If water usage data is unavailable for particular users or locations, statisiical analysis of
available water usage coupled with industry standards will be utilized to determine water usage in these instances.
3. Other miscellaneous information will be obtained if available, including but not limited to, storm sewer mapping, groundwater
monitoring wells, sewer inspection reports, pump station information, etc.
4. Upon_completion of the data gathering period, HUNT will review with the City all data and revisit the project approach to ensure all
goals and expectations are being met.

HUNT will review the conditions of the sewer infrastructure including pipes, pumpl valves, and other components including the following
ffirts:
1. Analyze system hydraulics by developing system curves.
2. Analyze pump hydraulics and optimal operation points as indicated by pump curves.
3. Calculate pump capacities and operating ranges to evaluate current and future demand requirements.
4. Lvaluate energy usage and make recomrnendations for efficiencies.
5. Evaluate compliance with state and federal regulations.
6. Assess the condition of pumps and valves and estimate costs for recommended alternatives,

HUNT will review the City's sewer policies and regulations to ensure compliance with state and federal regulations as well as make
suggestions for efficiency improvements.

FlowMonitoring and Additional Data Gathering Efiorts (If Needed)
HUNT staff shall work with_City of Lockport staff to recommend potential meter locations within the study alea and outline resulting
sewersheds. The selection of a metering manhole is often the most critical component in flow monitoring, as poor flow regimens, pipi
obstructions, and other intrusions can impact the ability of the flow meter to accurately and continuously meier flow. OnCe metering
rnanholes are agreed upon, HUNT will install the appropriate flow meter (area/velocity meter, level sensors, or a combination) and
setup rain gauges throughout the City of Lockport Sanitary Sewer System. Concurrently to flow meter installation and start-up, HUNT
will work with the City to begin collecting additional data.

These ffirts are not included in HUNT\ scope; though HIINT wiII assist in quoting and securing contractors to accomplish these eforts for
the City. In general, this portion of the project will consist of the following:
Select metering manhole locations and install appropriate flow metering equiprnent. Set-up rain gauges throughout the system as
necessary to capture representative rainfall for the flow monitoring period.

Inflow & Infiltration Analysis
Once the model has been completed, HUNT will utilize historical rainfall data and flow data including WWTF influent flow data, CSO
discharge data, and any metering data if provided or collected, see above, to develop a model to quanti$ llI. HUNT will analyze the
model to quantify groundwater infltration and rainfall derived infiltration and inflow asfollows:

l Review all rainfall data and interpolate rainfall data across the Sewer System to establish accurate rainfall volumes for each
sewershed.

H U N T tNGTNnERs r ARcHrrncrs i suRVnyoRs
59

Lockport Project Approach



2. For each sewershed, the flow data will be evaluated to calculate the following:
A. Average Dry Weather Flow - Average flow during a period of dry weather with seasonal high groundwater
B. Groundwater Infiltration * Flow rate during periods of low water usage (i.e., nighttime flows)
C. Base Sanitary Flow Rate - The portion of the flow rate generated from users within the sewer district
D. Inflow - Inflow rates and volumes following storm events (included direct and delayed inflow)

3. Sewershed sizes will be calculated in terms of equivalent length of pipe (inch-diameter.mile), and an infiltration rate per equivalent
length of pipe will be calculated for each sewershed. This metrii wiil 6eiompared against industry standards for acceptable infiltration
rates. The sewershed's will be prioritized based upon infiltration rate, to help the City focus improvement efforts accordingly.

4. For certain storm events, inflow peaking factors will be established. Inflow peaking factors are the ratio of peak inflow to average
dry weather flow and can be cornpared against anticipated peaking factors for dornestic and commercial water usage diurnal flow
patt€rns. Comparing actual and anticipated peaking factors, can help determine a sewershed's response to storms of varying intensities.
Additionally peaking factors will be utilized to prioritize inflow improvement efforts for each sewershed location.

5. Utilizing InfoSWMM, HUNT will calibrate the flow data to the water usage data, to establish a base sanitary sewer model. From
the base model, HUNT will develop a capacify analysis of the system during various simulated storm events (i.e.,2-yr,S-yr,25-yr
storms). These efforts will further help the City predict and understand each sewershed's response to wet weather due to rainfall derived
infiltration and inflow. This model will then be utilized to recommend and prioritize projects.

Develop Preliminary Recommendations
I{UNT will develop a list of recommended projects and provide cost estimates to prioritize based on feasibility and long-term planning.
These recommended projects may include separating sections of combined sewer into separate storm and sanitary sewers, repair/
reJining of sewer sections, or complete rebuild and/or upsizing of pipes. Through this process, it may be necessary to perform sewer
televising and snroke testing to confirm the conditions of the existing systcm.

These ffirts are not included in HUNT\ scope; though HUNT will assist in quoting and securing contractors to accomplish these eforts for
the City. In general, this portion of the project will consist oJ the following
Requesting proposals for smoke testing and televising sanitary sewer mains including cleaning efforts if needed. Deliverables to include
a televising log, report, and videos.

Follow-up Meeting
HUNT will meet with the City to confirm agreement with analysis and modelling efforts and to discuss the preliminary
recommendations. This discussion will be supported by the cost estimates and determinations of feasibility garnered by the
eforts discussed above. HUNT will work with the City to ensure that the correct priorities and timelines are being met by these
recommendations.

Develop Report
HUNT will develop a report with the objective of prioritizing projects for long-term planning. In addition to the efforts as outlined
above, the report analysis will include:
. A comprehensive assessment of the condition of the existing sewer infrastructure, inclucling pipes, pumps, valves, and other
components u"ith a
. An evaluation of the capacity of the existing sewer systems to meet current and future demand.
. An analysis of the City's sewer policies and regulations to ensure compliance with state and federal regulations.
. Identification ofareas ofconcern, such as areas with high levels I/I and sewer backups, and an analysis ofthe causes ofthese issues.
. Cost estimates for recommended alternatives.
. Identification of potential funding sources for recommended improvements.

Team Meetings and Finalization Meeting
HINT will be prepared,to attend team meetings as requested by the City to discuss project progress, findings, data, or any other topic
related to the Master Infrastructure Plan study. Certain sections of the Plan report will be valuable when applying for grant funding
for the recommended projects. HUNT will review the final product rvith the City to ensure that all deliverables are met to the City's
standards.

H U N T TNGTNDnRs r ARcHrrrcrs r suRVEyoRs
60

Lockport Project Approach



This Page lntentionally Left Blank

H U N T tNGrNriF.RS r AR(i..'rcrs r suRV.yoRs
61



Fee Schedule
Our general scope above is broken out in the following fee schedule to accommodate the Scope format as described within the RFP as
follor.vs:

1. Preliminary Data Gathering and Research $15,000

2. Kickoffand Follow Up Meetings $7,200

3. Analysis & Recornmendations / Perrrit/Costs $85,000

4. Development of Report $55,000

TOTAL $155,000.00

Items of Exclusion

Iiurther inforrnation may be required to develop recomrnendations. This quote does not include the costs for additional data gathering
including smoke testing and televising sections of sanitary sewer or services required for flow testing, metering, or presslrre testing
water mains. HUNT will provide assistance to quote these services, but the cost of these services is not included in the above fee.

Schedule

Our estimated schedule based upon the items within the Scope (and assuming the City awards the contract at their 6/28/23 meeting) are as

follows:

Preliminary Data Gathering & Research - fuly 3, 2023 - luly 21,2023

KickoffMeeting - Week of luly 24,2023

Research/Modelling/Cost Estirnation & Develop Initial Recornrnendations* - July 31 , 2023 - October 27,2023

Follow-Up Meeting - Week of October 30, 2023

Analysis and Final Recommendations - November 6,2023 - |anuary 26,2024

Finalization Meeting - Week of |antary 29,2024

Development ofReport - February 5,2024 - April 26,2024

(To meet 2024 fundingrounds)

*May require additional dala gathering, see Items of Exclusion section above

H U N T TNGTNEER' r ARcHrr.crs r suRvnyoRs Lockport Fees



This Page lntentionally left Blank

H U l! T TNGTNDF.Rs r ARcHrrncrs r suRvryoRs
63



Rita Y.lVlcCarthy, Town Manager
Town of Erwin
310 Town Center Road - 2nd Floor
Painted Post, NY 14870
phone: 607.962J021
e-mail: lbwnManager@ErwinNY.org

AnthonyJ. Bates, Clerk Treasurer-Village Manager
Village of Endicott
1009 East Main Street
Endicott, NY 13760
phone: 607.757.5337
e-mail: ABates@EndicottNY.com

Michael Quinn, PE, Sr. Distribution Engineer
Erie CountyWater Authority (ECWA)
295 Main Street, Room 350
Buffalo, NY 14203
phone: 000.000.0000
e-mail: MQuinngECWA.org

ShawnCrater, Water System Supervisor
Town of Big Flats
476 Maple St
Big Flats, NY 14814
phone: 607J52.7A63
e-mail: SCrater@BigFlatsNY.gov

H U N T tNcrNEtRs r ARcHrrrcrs r suRvDyoRs
63

References



3

NIAGARA COUNTY
COUNTY CLERK'S OFFICE
COURTHOUSE
P.O. BOX 461

LOCKPORT' NY 14095-0461

TOSEPHA. TASTRZEMSKI
County Clerk

MATTHEW L. PARISH
First Deputy County Clerk

(716) 4s9-7022
(716) 439-7035 Fax

To: The Honorable Mark Devine

From: Niagara County Clerk

Subject: Resolution Request

Dear Alderman Devine,

Niagara County is having a Purple Heart monument dedication service along with our annual Purple

Heart award ceremony on August 6,2023 at 12:00.

We would like to request that you sponsor a resolution for the following:

1. That Niagara St. be closed from 10AM to 3PM on August 6,2023 from the corner of Prospect St.

to Hawley St.

2. That Hawley St. be closed from 10AM to 3PM on August 6,2023 from the corner of Niagara St.

to Park Ave.

3. That Park Ave be closed from 10AM to 3PM on August 6,2023 from the corner of Prospect St. to
the Navy Marine Club parking lot. (To include the parking lot entrance.)

4. lf able, the County would like to know if the City could provide eight set of bleachers for guests

who attend the event.

5. lf able, the County would like to know if the city could provide two officers for traffic control at
the beginning of the event and at the end of the event. We are also asking the Niagara County
Sheriff to provide building security as well as traffic control.

Thank you for any assistance the city of Lockport can provide.

Joseph A. J astrzems

Niagara County Clerk



062623.10

By Alderman Devine:

Whereas that pursuant to their request, the Niagara County Clerk's Office is
hereby granted permission to host their Purple Heart Award Ceremony and dedication
service, in honor of the distinguished members of the United States Armed Forces who
were wounded or killed in action. Said event shall take place on August 6,2023 at 12
noon; and

Whereas a formal Purple Heart ceremony provides an opportunity to express our
gratitude, and to pay tribute to their service, and offer support to Purple Herat recipients
and their families;

Now therefore it be resolved:

1 . Niagara Street shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of
Prospect St to Hawley Street

2. That Hawley Street shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of
Niagara Street to Park Avenue

3. That Park Avenue shall be closed from 10 am - 3 pm, from the corner of
Prospect Street to the Navy Marine Club parking lot

4. The City shall provide eight sets of bleachers for guests who attend the event
5. The City shall provide two City of Lockport Police Officers for help with traffic

control at the beginning and end of the event; and it is further

Resolved that the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Distribution is hereby
authorized and directed to arrange for delivery of barricades and bleachers to said area
prior to said event.

Seconded by Alderman and adopted. Ayes



t4

Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

cityclerk@ lockportny.gov
Wednesday, July 19, 202310:17 AM
'Deputy City Clerk'
FW: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

See belaw

From: Kristen Kress <kreshal19@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 79,202310:15 AM
To: cityclerk@ lockportny.gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

Yes on cottage st thank you very much
On Wed, Jul 19, 2023 at 10:13 AM <cityclerk(Olockpartn wrote:

Kristen,

Just to clarify:

Block Party - August 12th

Noon - 9 pm.

Requesf to close Cottage sfreef from Legrange to High Street

Alderman Fogle has offered to Sponsor-

ls there anything that I am missing?

From: Kristen Kress <kreghal19@gmail.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July L9,2023 9:55 AM
To: citvclerk@ lockportny.gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August 12th Block party



Ok, thank you.

On Tue, Jul 18, 2023 at 5:06 PM <cit.vclerk@lockpoft wrote:

You will receive a notification the day after the meeting * July 2Vh

From: Kristen Kress <kreshaI19@smail.cotTr>

Sent: Tuesday, July 18,2023 5:06 PM

To: citvclerk@lockportnv.sov
Subject: Re: IEXTERNAL] August 12th Block party

ok will I get a confirmation ? I just wanted to be sure before I pass the flyers

On Tue, Jul 18, 2023 at 5:04 PM <cityclerk@lockpo wrote

Kristen,

Thank you - I will add for the July 26th meeting!

Sarah

From: Kristen Kress <kreshal19@smail.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 78,2023 5:02 PM
To: citvclerk@ lockportnv.gov
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] August L2th Block party

They both replied that they would sponsor and said they would ask the clerk to put on the agenda June 26th

2



I(t

City of Lockport - Resolution Request Form

Agenda Description:LOCkfeSt-MuSiC and ArtS fOr the WhOle Family!

Presented tv' LOCkpOft Main Stfeet
f 

o.." r,o*,*ea:f If gI2023

Community Event
Budget Amendment
Contract Approval

Donation Acceptance

Grant Application / Award
Fund Utilization Request

Local Law Change

Community Development
Community Event

Engineering Process

Code and Planning

Other

Topic Area (Select Most Applicable Option):

Please provide to cle* ot ledst I cak,rlullgyt ptiot ta Councll meetlng. Otherwise request wlt! go to Jollowlng meettng.

Summary of Resolution:

This event will take place on Sunday, August 27th from 12pm to 7pm located at the Lockview Plaza in Lockport.
Lockport Main Street has joined forces with B&D Bagels to create Lockfest- Music and Arts for the Whole Family! The event will include
local vendors, live music, food offerings, and family fun activities, games, and crafts for free.

LMS requests permission to close Main Street be closed to through trafflc from Cottage to Pine Skeet for the duration of the event
LMS requisition permission to place portable sanitation units on Main Street for this evenl
LMS requests the Director of Streets and Parks to arrange to deliver refuse containers to the area prior to Sunday, August 27th.
LMS requests to have access to the electricity available at the light posts along Main Street.
LMS Permission for vendors and restaurants to set up and serve at the event.
Requests the Director of Highways, Parks and Water Dishibution is permit delivery and pick-up of 10 City banicades and 6 trash
receptacles.
LMS will submit a certificate of insurance with the City clerk naming the City of Lockport as additional insured. LMS will adhere to any and all
Executive Orders by the New York State Governor, and any and all Local Laws and Regulations, with regard to social distancing and
3OVID-19 regulations during the operation of these events.

Explanation of Attachments:

The map indicates the event layout. Lockport Main Street will submit a certificate of
insurance naming the City of Lockport as additionally insured for this event.

include all backup correspondence, purchase order, quotes, meeting minutes, emails, etc.,. tf any of thir
be released publically, please denote a check in this field: _

ts and

Clerk/Legal/Finance

Notes:

me: Date of Approval:



7

Whereas, General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on
them by the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Sunrise Optimists for a donation of $600 to be used for Family Fun
Night on August 11, 2023; and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
A.8510.32705 Gifts and Donation $600

Expenditures
lncrease
A.8510.54515 Special Supplies $600



6

Whereas, General City Law 20(3) authorizes the City to accept donations from
individuals or organizations, and to use said donations per the restrictions placed on
them by the donor, regardless of minimum value; now, therefore, be it

Resolved, that the Mayor and Common Council do hereby extend thanks and
appreciation to the Rotary Club of Lockport for a donation of $32,913 to be used for a
pavilion to be used in the Lower Town Loop / Market Street Bathroom (under NASPO
contract 1 0700-1 5856); and

Resolved that the FY 2023 General Fund budget be amended as follows:

Revenue
lncrease
4.7110.32705 Gifts and Donation $32,913

Expenditures
Increase
4.7110.52025 Building and Grounds Equipment $32,913



I
Proposal #:
Date:

37238.R3 - 108518 01 02
06/30/2023

RCP SHrrrERS, lNc.
Pnoposnt/Onnnn Fnrvr

City of Lockporl
Attn: Steve Pump
1 Locks Plaza
Lockporl, NY 14094

2100 SE Rays Way r Stuart, FL34994
P: 800-525-0207 o 772-288-3600
F:772-288-0207
info@ rcpshelters.com . http://www. rcpshelters.com

Phone: 716-439-6758

Prepared by: Linda Culliton/hd
E-mail: spump .gov lculliton mrcrec.com

New York State Contract PC 67834 Canal Shelter - Lockport, NY

INcLUDED

r NY Cert Drawings: includes standard RCP foundation design
r Frame: powder coated tube steel
r Roof Deck: exposed fastener metal roofing (see specs)
. Anchor bolts and templates
r Electrical provisioning (see page 2)
r Hardware: all required fasteners
r Delivery: to an accessible site

NoT INCLUDED

r Unloading
r Concrete
r Concrete embedment (wire mesh, rebar, etc.)

" Rails/ornamentation/benches/cupola
r lnstallation
: Anything not specifically listed as "lncluded"

TERMS & CoNDITIoNS PLEASE REMIT PAYMENTTo MRc Po Box
106 SPRING LAKE, NJ 07762
r Orders not subject to cancellation
r 30% deposit due with order
r Balance due prior to shipment

o Net 30 available with approved credit (check only)
r 3% discount for payment in full with order (check only)

DIRECT PO To RCP FRoM GoVERNMENT AGENCIES

r Net 30
e 1% discount net 10

r no deposits required

PRlclNG NOTES (RCP reserves the right to requote if)
r Quote is olderthan 30 days
r Purchaser drawing approval exceeds 30 days
r Purchaser delays original ship date 30+ days
r Project location snow load exceeds 50 psf

(Print/Title)

Signature confirms occeptance of all poges of this proposol.

Page

A 1.00
Modelf: TS-G2040-04
20' x 4O'Steel Gable Shelter

Original price

s36,570.00
Discounted

price

s32,913.00

FREIGHT
Pooled freight rate delivered to an accessible site, Upgrade to dedicated truck or split shipment
is available upon request at an additional fee. Refer to notes on page 2 for more details.

lncluded

SALES TAx
CA or FL sales tax to be added unless tax exemption is provided.
For all other states, purchaser is responsible for sales tax to appropriate authorities.

ToTAL Total of ltem(s) and option(s) selected and freight (if applicable)

PRIcEITEM Qrv DEscRtPfloN

(Signature) (Date)
tl3



RCP SHerrrRs, lNc.
Pnoros*r-/CnoEn f onu {C*ru riruunn}

Proposal #: 37238.R3

2100 SE Rays Way o Stuart, FL 34994
P: 800-525-0207 . 772-288-3600
F:772-288-Q207
info@rcpshelters.com . http://www.rcpshelters.com

City of Lockport - Lockport, NY

Desrcru / EruerrusrRrrue

. Proposal based on design by RCP Shelters, not necessarily an exact match to bid or architectural drawings.
r RCP value engineers for minimum number of columns to keep the pavilion as open and accessible as possible. Final design may

not reflect the same number of columns or members, sizes, or spacing as images on RCP's website and catalog or preliminary
drawing.

r Drawing lead times vary significantly based on design simplicity/complexity, seasonal demand, and current order backlog.
r DesignrequirementsnotdisclosedtoRCPpriortoproposal orrequiredrevisionsresultingfrominformationnotdisclosedattime

of order are subject to additional charge. Common examples:
o All pertinent foundation information, including but not limited to geotechnical report, maximum depth for water table, or

installations near or connection to other structures (drift snow loads), or any other site-specific request/requirement must be
provided with order. Without this information, RCP reserves the right to requote or charge additional engineering fee.

o Proposal includes standard foundation based on assumed soil values (minimum 2' diameter & 4'deep - can be much larger
depending on loading conditions and size of structure). Foundations may be designed by others with RCP provided column
base reactions. Custom foundation designs may be available for additional fee.

o Electrical or other custom cutouts not specifically included in the proposal are subject to additional engineering, drafting, and
fabrication fees.

r Local code may have requirements that are not the responsibility of RCP (examples: NJ architectural stamp, FL fire barrier board).
r Each project is designed for its specific location after receipt of order. Occasionally, engineering determines that materials not

included in the proposal are required. Such materials shall be provided by others (example: oSB diaphragm is sometimes required
on larger LW-G and bandshell models).

r Drawings provided by RCP Shelters with this proposal are preliminary and are not for construction. Owner can pre-purchase
engineered drawings, which detail the project specific foundation design and material requirements, with no obligation to
purchase the entire structure.

FnsRrcnrroN / SFrrpptNe DrrnlLs
r Fabrication lead times vary based on seasonal demand and current order backlog.
. Freight price is based on pooled loads.
. Upgrade to dedicated truck or split shipment is available for an additional fee.
. Shipping dates are not guaranteed. RCP does not accept orders with penalties or contingent liability.
r Trucking will call at least 24 hours prior to delivery to coordinate,
. Unloading by others. RCP recommends non-marring padded slings and padded forks for offloading. Block all materials off ground

and cover with moisture resistant paper until installation.

ELEcTRIcAt PRoVISIoNING. IF cHosEN, Is DEFINED As:
r Custom electrical requirements may add weeks to the lead time for drawing submittals
s 1/r" conduit access holes in base plates of steel columns
r 1" conduit access holes through steel frame to fixture locations
r 1" conduit access holes in steel beams at fixture locations (lights, fans, etc.)
. Up to 1 switch cutout per steel column, 48" from finish floor, 2'%" x3Tr"
* Up to 1 receptacle cutout per steel column, l-8" from finish floor, Z%" x3 /2"

PRoPoSAL NoTEs & DETAILS

(Signature) (Print/Title)

Signature confirms acceptance of oll pages of this proposal.

(Date)
Page

2/3



TrcHru tcAL SpEct FtcATloNS

Proposal #: 37238.R3

l. Drsrcrrr CRttERra

Structure shall be designed to be free standing, open air pavilion in conformance with all applicable building code.
Manufactured by RCP Shelters: 2100 SE Rays Way, Stuart, FL34gg4. Toll-free: 8oo-52s-0207 . F:772-288-o207 .
http://www. rcpshelters.com . info@rcpshelters.com.

ll. ScoPE

Structure shall be an all steel pavilion over a 4" minimum thickness reinforced concrete slab. pavilion shall have a clear space,
without a center column or open knee bracing. Structure shall be designed by professional engineers. The owner or contractor
shall be responsible for unloading, temporary storage, soil testing (if necessary), site preparation, concrete slab, and erection of
structures. Owner or contractor is responsible for protection of materials after arrival.

Cot-uwrrrrs

The pavilion shall be set on prepared footings. Foundation shall be engineered to manufacturer's design and constructed to
local code and good construction practices for the specific site conditions. The structure shall have tube steel corner columns.
The columns shall be attached to the top of the concrete foundation by use of anchor bolts, hidden when possible. Anchor bolts
shall be provided by owner or contractor so that foundations can be prepared and ready for installation upon delivery of the
pavilion. Alternatively, RCP Shelters offers an anchor bolt option, to be shipped upon receipt of drawing approval for
fa brication.

IV Fnanne

All structural framing of the pavilion shall be structural tube steel with end caps to form a clean, neat appearance with no place
forbirdstonestorsmall animalstoroost. Thecompressionringshall bestructural steel plate. Sinceall connectionswill bolt
together, field welding shall not be required. Bolts shall be concealed within the tubing when possible.

PoworR CoAT FtNtsH

The columns and frame shall be sandblasted to near-white condition, five stage washed, including detergent, phosphate, and
rust protectant sealant, epoxy primed, then top coated with TGIC powder. The columns and frame shall be packaged in foam,
cardboard, and stretch wrap to protect the finish during transit. The color shall be selected from manufacturer,s standard color
chart. Field touch up painting shall be required by owner or contractor.

Vl. EAVE & PtrcH

Eave height shall be minimum 7,-6,,. Roof pitch shall be 4:12

Vll. RooFtNG

Theroofsystemshall bestructural 24-gaugeexposedfastenerGalvalume@panelswitht%"highribs,7.2',oncenter. Ribsshall
runwiththepitchoftheroofforproperdrainage. Roof panelsshall be3'wideandprecutbythelengthfromtheeavetothe
ridge. Angles shall be factory precut. Matching roof trim & fasteners shall be supplied. Hip and ridge beams shall have cap
plates for metal deck bearing, as metal deck cannot structurally bear on beam corner only. panels and trim shall be pre-painted
with the Kynar 500@ paint system' Color shall be chosen by owner from the standard color chart, provided upon request.

RCP Shelters, lnc. . 2100 SE Rays Way, Stuart, FL 34994
Toll Free 800-525-0207 ' Local 772-288-3600 . Fax 772-288-0207. info@rcpshelters.com . http://www.rcpshelters.com

Page

J/5



q

Deputy City Clerk

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subiect:

cityclerk@ lockportny.gov
Thursday, July 20, 2023 10:18 AM
jzkaneS9@gmail.com

'Deputy City Clerk'
Tony Ventura Fundraiser

We spoke this morning about the following, and I am writing to ensure that I have
captured all of the details:

August 12, 2023
Time:3PM-9PM
Fundraiser for Tony Ventura
Location: Short Sfreef

Resolution request to barricade Short Street at the corner of Michigan from 3 pm - 9
pm.

Please let me know if the above information is correct - and/or if we need to modify.
Thank you!
Sarah

Sarah K. Lanzo
City Clerk
Phone: l7t5l 439-6674
Fax: (716) 439-6702
cityclerk@ lockportny.gov

Good Morning Jimmy,


